City of Kingsville, Texas

AGENDA
CITY COMMISSION

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2014
REGULAR MEETING

HONORABLE ROBERT H. ALCORN COMMISSION CHAMBERS
CITY HALL/200 EAST KLEBERG AVENUE
6:00 P.M

l. Preliminary Proceedings.
OPEN MEETING
APPROVED BY:

INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - (Mayor Fugate)
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) — Required by Law m } Cﬁ-ﬁ)ﬁﬁﬂ_/

Regular Meeting —October 27, 2014 Vincent J. (ﬂapel[
aer

City Mana
Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."

1. NONE.
Il. Reports from Commission & Staff.? (City Manager's Staff Report Attached).

‘At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include, but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Healfth Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful, and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reporis include the following: Building & Development , Code
Enforcement, Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial &
Investment Information, Monthly Financial Reports; Police & Fire Department — Grant
Update, Police & Fire Reports; Street Updates; Public Works- Building Maintenance,
Construction Updates; Park Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, Hotel
Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan Update, Tax Increment
Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project, Financial Advisor. No
formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

lll. Public Comment on Agenda ltems. ®
1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

Pageiof3
AGENDA ~ KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 10, 2014



Iv.

VI.

Consent Agenda

Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the
item or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal
sequence after the ifems not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The
remaining items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vofe on alf motions, resolutions and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the zoning ordinance by
changing the zoning map in reference to Lot 1, Brentwood Subdivision, known as 1106
North Armstrong from R3 Muiti-family Residential District to C2 Retail District, amending
the comprehensive plan to account for any deviation from the existing comprehensive
plan. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

2. Motion to consider confirming appointment of Amanda E. Cavazos and Monica
Salinas to the Police Reserve Force. (Chief of Police).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

Items for consideration by Commissioners.’

3. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Ground Lease
Agreement by and between Kingsville High Historical Foundation and the City of
Kingsville. (City Attorney).

4. Consider awarding bid for the drilling of water well #25 to Alsay, Inc., as per contract
engineer and staff recommendation. (Director of Purchasing and Technology).

5. Consider authorizing the purchase of one 14-cu.yd. dump truck for use at the Landfill
from BuyBoard vendor, as per staff recommendation. (Director of Purchasing and
Technology).

6. Consider authorizing the purchase of ten vehicles for various departments via
BuyBoard, as per staff recommendation. (Director of Purchasing and Technology).

7. Consider authorizing a change in contract terms for curb, gutter, and driveway repair
work, as per staff recommendation. (Director of Purchasing and Technology).

8. Consider authorizing out-of-state travel for two employees to aitend the Laserfiche
Empower Conference in Anaheim, CA on January 13-16, 2015. (Director of Purchasing
and Technology).

Page2of3
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
NOVEMEBER 10, 2014



9. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Utility
Fund budget to provide additional funding for the new city hall at the historic H.M. King
High School. (Director of Finance).

10. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Police
Depariment State Seizure Fund budget for the purchase of automatic license plate
readers. (Director of Finance).

11. Consider participation with the Kingsville Farmer's Market for a farmer's market at the
City's pavilion at the xeriscape area. (Commissioner Leubert).

VH. Adjournment.

- No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes. Cannot be extended by Commission.

% No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes without permission of majority of Commission.

% Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. May be extended or permitted at other times in the
meeting only with & affirmative Commission votes. The speaker must identify himself by name and
address.

4 Items being considered by the Commission for action except citizens comments to the Mayor and
Commission, no comment at this peoint without 5 affirmative votes of the Commission.

NOTICE

This City of Kingsville and Commission Chambers are wheelchair accessible and
accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive
services must be made 48 hours prior %o this meeting. Please contact the City
Secretary's office at 361/595-8002 or FAX 361/595-8024 ox E-Mail
nvalenzuelalecityofkingsville.com for further information. Braille Is Not Available.
The City Commission reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time
during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as
authorized by the Texas Government Code, Section 551-071 (Consultation with Attorney),
551-072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551-073 Deliberations about Gifts and
Donations), 551-074 (Perscnnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security
Devices) , 551-086 (Certain Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters), and 551-087
(Economic Development) .

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that the Notice of Meeting was posted on the
bulletin board in the City Hall, 200 East Kleberg, of the City of Kingsville, Texas, a place
convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted
on the following date and time:

November 6, 2014 at 3:30 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours
proceeding the schedule time of said meeting.

OO N ele.
Mary Valeﬁ%uela, City%’ecretary
City of Kingsville, Texas

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Kingsville City Hall on the
following date and time;

By:
City Secretary’s Office
City of Kingsville, Texas

Page3of3
AGENDA — KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 10, 2014




MINUTES OF PREVIOUS
MEETING(S)



OCTOBER 27, 2014

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION WAS HELD ON
MONDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2014 IN THE HONORABLE ROBERT H. ALCORN COMMISSION
CHAMBERS 200 EAST KLEBERG AVENUE AT 6:00 P.M.

CITY COMMISSION PRESENT:
Sam Fugate, Mayor

Dianne Leubert, Commissioner
Noel Pena, Commissioner

Al Garcia, Commissioner

Arturo Pecos, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Vince Capeil, City Manager

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

David Mason, Purchasing/IT Director
Deborah Balli, Finance Director

Tom Ginter, Director of Planning & Development Services
Leo Alarcon, Tourism Director

Emilio Garcia, Health Director

Diana Gonzales, Human Resources Director
Joey Reed, Fire Chief

Wiillie Vera, Task Force Commander
Cynthia Martin, Downtown Manager

l. Preliminary Proceedings.

OPEN MEETING
Mayor Fugate called the meeting to order in the Robert H. Alcorn Commission Chamber at 6:00
p.m. and announced quorum with all five Commission members present.

INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - (Mayor Fugate)
The invocation was delivered by Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney, followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) — Required by Law
Regular Meeting —October 13, 2014

Motion made by Commissioner Garcia to approve the minutes as presented, seconded
by Commissioner Pena. The motion was passed and approved by the following vote:
Garcia, Leubert, Pena, Fugate voting “FOR”. Pecos “ABSTAIN”.

Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."

1. Public hearing to consider introduction of an ordinance amending the zoning
ordinance by changing the zoning map in_ reference to Lot 1, Brentwood
Subdivision, known as 1106 North Armstrong from R3 Multi-family Residential
District to C2 Retail District, amending the comprehensive plan to account for any
deviation from the existing comprehensive plan; applicant Yolanda Zapata.
(Director of Planning and Development Services).

Mayor Fugate announced and opened this public hearing at 6:02 P.M.

Page 1 of 5 - OCTORBER 27, 2014



Ms. Yolanda Zapata, 1923 Rettye Drive, Kingsville, TX, commented that she is the owner
of this property and has a potential renter. The renter would like to open an indian
Cuisine Restaurant to be known as Café 5. The property is located across from Texas
A&M University-Kingsville.

Commissioner Garcia asked for some clarification from staff regarding the memo
submitted for the agenda packet regarding this item. The memo stated that the Planning
& Zoning Commission voted 0-0.

Mr. Tom Ginter, Director of Planning & Development Services commented that the
Planning & Zoning Commission approved the iter 5-0. Due to the agenda being posted
prior to the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, a draft memo was provided to staff.

Commissioner Leubert asked how many tables and parking spaces will be provided at
this location.

Mr. Ginter commented that the applicant has stated that there will be five to six tables
which will require one parking space per table. It is stated that there will be about twenty
parking spaces at this location. Fifteen parking spaces at the rear of the restaurant with
five located in the front.

Mayor Fugate commented that his concern is that if the City Commission approves the
rezone and when it comes to purchasing the permits from the City, they may have a hard
time due to the tight area for parking. Mayor Fugate further asked Ms. Zapata if she
understood what he was stating regarding the parking since it does look like a tight
location.

Ms. Zapata stated that she understood and this is why she is stating that there will be
fifteen parking spaces in the back with five located in the front of the location. She further
commented that she also owns the property located next door.

Commissioner Leubert asked if this would not block the alley. Ms. Zapata responded by
stating no.

Commissioner Pecos stated that the majority of the customers that will be at this
restaurant will probably be students of Texas A&M University-Kingsville. He further
commented that most students don’t own vehicles. This location will have more walking
traffic than driving traffic.

Commissioner Garcia asked if the parking area will be resurfaced.

Ms. Zapata responded that whatever the City requires will be done. Zapata further stated
that the Planning & Zoning Commission is requiring a privacy fence between the
business and the neighboring property. Ms. Zapata further stated that this will be a five
year lease the renter will be signing.

Il. Reports from Commission & Staff.? (City Manager’s Staff Report Attached).

“At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include, but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful, and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development , Code
Enforcement, Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial &
Investment Information, Monthly Financial Reports; Police & Fire Department — Grant
Update, Police & Fire Reports; Street Updates; Public Works- Building Maintenance,
Construction Updates; Park Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, Hotel

Page 2 of 5 - OCTOBER 27, 2014



Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan Update, Tax Increment
Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project, Financial Advisor. No
formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

Mr. Vince Capell, City Manager, reported that the City will be hosting a taiigate event for
city employees and their families on Saturday, November 1*. Food will be served from
4:30 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. with game at 7:00 p.m. Mr. Capell further stated that Mrs. Cynthia
Martin is available to make a presentation on the Historic Research Survey Report.

Mrs. Martin reported that the Historic Research Survey Report is how completed and
has been accepted by the Texas Historical Commission. A copy of this report has been
provided to the City Commission for their review. She further stated that this information
is very useful and will provide a great guide for development boards. The GIS map will
be available on the City website for all to view. Mrs. Martin further commented that she
would like to thank the students from Texas A&M University-Kingsville for al! their
assistance in gathering some of the information.

Commissioner Leubert thanked everyone involved in gathering information for this
report, _

Mrs. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney, reported that the next City Commission meeting is
scheduled for Monday, November 10", with agenda items due on Friday, October 31%,
Alvarez further reported that the City of Kingsville will be hosting their Annual Downtown
Fall Festival Friday, October 31% from 4:00 p.m. to 5:45 p.m. in the 200-300 block of
Kleberg Avenue. Alvarez further reported that since the agenda was posted last
Tuesday, which was a day prior to the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, staff had
the body of the rezoning ordinance ready and had not had the Planning & Zoning
Commission meeting to know what the vote might have been. She further stated that an
updated ordinance for signing will be provided to the City Secretary for the next
scheduled City Commission meeting, if approved.

Commissioner Garcia asked if it is required for the City Commission to accept the
Historic Research Survey Report in order to make if official.

Mr. Capell responded that it is not required, but City Commission comments would be
appreciated.

Commissioner Leubert stated that she had the pleasure presenting a proclamation for
Red Ribbon Week today and thanked Chief Torres for his presentation to the kids on
Synthetic Marijuana and how bad it is for anyone to use.

Commissioner Pena asked for an update from Mrs. Alvarez regarding the no texting and
talking ordinance which was approved back in March, 2014. Mrs. Alvarez stated that she
has seen a few come through Municipal Court to which several of them have pleaded
guilty and a few pleading not guilty. The fine for the first conviction is $316.00 and with a
second conviction being slight higher amount.

lll. Public Comment on Agenda ltems.®

1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

No comments were made.

Page 3 of 5 - OCFOBER 27, 2014



Iv.

VL.

Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the
itemm or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal
sequence after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The
remaining items wilf be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission wilf vote on all motions, resolutions and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

Motion made by Commissioner Pecos to approve the consent agenda as
presented, seconded by Commissioner Garcia. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Leubert, Pecos, Pena, Garcia, Fugate voting
“FOR”.

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the fiscal year 2014-
2015 budget for the General Fund to provide funding for building improvements to
the city property at 2211 South Brahma Blvd. (Director of Finance).

2. Motion to approve resolution authorizing the release of Chapter 59 Funds of the
Kingsville Police Department for donation to the Boys & Girls Club of Kingsville

{Police Chief).

3. Motion to approve the appointment of Mr. Alonzo Lopez, Jr. to the Civil Service
Commission to serve a three (3) year term. (Director of Human Resources).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

4. Consider authorizing the purchase of a John Deere backhoe for the Water
Construction Department via BuyBoard, as per staff recommendation. (Director of
Purchasing and Technology).

Mr. David Mason, Director of Purchasing and Technology, reported that this item is a
budgeted capital improvement item for the Water Construction Department. This a very
timely purchase as the Kamotsu backhoe is no longer functioning and needs to be
replaced so Water Construction may continue with their daily duties. Mason further
commented that the best value for the City is a John Deere 310K from Doggett Heavy
Machinery Services in Corpus Christi. The backhoe is complete with cab, front
counterweight, 24" and 18" buckets, extended hoe arm, 1.13 cu. yd. loader bucket and
48" forks to assist in the unloading and unloading of pipe and other materials. This action
will expend $81,314.49 from account 001-054-600.1-712.00

Mayor Fugate asked how long the City has owned the Kamotsu. Mr. Mason stated that
he does not have this information at this time.

Page 4 of 5 - OCTOBER 27, 2014



Motion made by Commissioner Leubert to authorize this purchase, seconded by
Commissioner Pecos. The motion was passed and approved by the following vote:
Pecos, Pena, Garcia, Leubert, Fugate voting “FOR".

5. Consider awarding bid (#15-01) for commercial base limestone to be purchased
as_needed for the Street Department, as per staff recommendation. (Director of

Purchasing and Technology}.

Mr. Mason reporied that the City advertised for sealed bids on September 28" and
October 5, 2014 and proposals were accepted until 1:30 p.m. on October 14, 2014, Only
one potential bidder responded that of Vulcan Materials. It is recommended the contract
be awarded to Vulcan Materials at their bid price of $23.00 per ton delivered and $15.50
picked up per ton at their plant. Our current price is $22.70 per ton delivered. This action
will not, in and of itself, expend any City funds, but rather is to award a contract under
Local Government Code 252.021 as the City anticipates spending more than $50,000 on
this commodity in Fiscal Year 2015.

Motion made by Commissioner Pena to approve award bid #15-01 as per staff's
recommendation, seconded by Commissioner Leubert and Commissioner Garcia.
The motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Pena, Garcia, Leubert,
Pecos, Fugate voting “FOR”.

6. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the zoning ordinance by
changing the zoning map in reference to Lot 1, Brentwood Subdivision, known as
1106 North Armstrong from R3 Muiti-family Residential District to C2 Retail District,
amending the comprehensive plan to account for any deviation from the existing
comprehensive plan. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

Introduction item.

7. Consider a resolution establishing the City of Kingsville Investment Policy and
Investment Strategies, designating the City Manager, Director of Finance, and City

Accounting Manager as the authorized city representatives with full authority for
investment purposes, and providing for disclosure of financial interest. (Director

of Finance).

Mrs. Deborah Baili, Finance Director, reported that this is basic housekeeping by
changing names due to position changes in the Finance Department.

Motion made by Commissioner Pena to approve this resolution, seconded by
Commissioner Pecos. The motion was passed and approved by the following vote:
Garcia, Leubert, Pecos, Pena, Fugate voting “FOR”.

VIl. Adjournment.

There being no further business to come before the City Commission, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:30 P.M.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Page 5 of 5 - OCTOBER 27, 2014



PUBLIC HEARING(S)



CONSENT AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #1



Planning Department -

TO: Vince Capell, City Manager
FROM: Torn Ginter, Director of Planning & Development Services
SUBJECT: [ntroducticn Rezone Approval Request

DATE: October 20, 2014

-Reference is made to a request for approval of a change in zoning of 1 lot addressed at 1106 N.
Armstrong. The petitioner is requesting a zoning district change from Multi-Family (R3) to Commercial
District (C2) in order to facilitate the development use of this property as a restaurant.

The Planning & Zoning Commission voted to approve the rezoning request by a vote of 5-0. City Staff
agrees with the Planning & Zoning Commission’s findings and recommends APPROVAL of this request by
City Commission.



ORDINANCE #2014~

AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE BY CHANGING THE ZONING
MAP IN REFERENCE TO LOT 1, BRENTWOOD SUBDIVISION,
KNOWN AS 1106 NORTH ARMSTRONG FROM R3 MULTI-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO C2 RETAIL DISTRICT; AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO ACCOUNT FOR ANY DEVIATIONS
FROM THE EXISTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; AND PROVIDING
FOR PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has forwarded to the City Commission its reports
and recommendations concerning the application of Yolanda Zapata, for amendment to
the zoning ordinance and zoning map of the City of Kingsville;

WHEREAS, with proper notice to the public, public hearings were held on Wednesday,
October 22, 2014 during a meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission, and on
Monday, October 27, 2014 during a meeting of the City Commission, at City Hall, in the
City of Kingsville, during which all interested persons were allowed to appear and be
heard; and

WHEREAS, a majority of the Planning Commission by a 5-0 vote APPROVED the
requested rezone; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that this amendment would best
serve public health, necessity, and convenience and the general welfare of the City of
Kingsville and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended by
changing the zoning of Lot 1, Bentwood Subdivision, known as 1106 North Armstrong
from R3 Multi-Family Residential District to C2 Retail District, as more specifically
described on the Zone Change Map, attached as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2. That the official Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended to
reflect the amendments to the Zoning Ordinance made by Section 1 of this ordinance.

SECTION 3. That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville,
Texas, as amended from time to time, except as changed by this ordinance and any
other ordinances adopted on this date, remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4. That to the extent that these amendments to the Zoning Ordinance
represent a deviation from the Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan is
amended to conform to the Zoning Ordinance, as amended by this ordinance.

SECTION 5. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby expressily repealed.



SECTION 6. That publication shall be made in the official publication of the City of
Kingsville as required by the City Charter of the City of Kingsville.

INTRODUCED on this the 27th  day of October , 2014.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the _10th  day of ___November , 2014.

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



- Staff Report to the PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
and CITY COMMISSION

by the Planning & Development Sérvices Department, Planning Division
City of Kingsville, Texas .

Request: APPROVAL FOR THE REZONING OF 1106 N ARMSTRONG FROM R-3TO C- -
2 FOR THE PURPOSE OF USING THE EXISTING BUILDING FOR COMMERCIAL
'PURPOSES NAMELY A RESTAURANT.

Petitioner and Agent: Yolanda Zapata, Owner
Date of P&Z Hearing:  October 22, 2014

Comprehen.sive Plan Land Use: Residential
_ . Existing Zoning Classification: R-3 Multi-family Residential

North: R-3 Multi-family Residential and C-2 Retail
East: R-3 Multi-family Residential

South: R3- Multi-family Residential and C-2 Retail
West: Texas A & M University - Kingsville

EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE
Transportation: Armstrong Avenue
Community Facilities: Services Provided
Capital Improvements: Public Service Improvements, Sanitary Sewer & Storm Water Collection
Fire Station Proximity: Within 2 miles . :
100 Yedr Flood Plain: The property is within Flood Zone C

EXHIBITS PRESENTED

Chapter 15 of the Kingsville Code of Ordinances (present at the meeting)
City of Kingsville Master Plan (present at the meeting)

Site Plan

Application for rezoning

BACKGROUND AND HISTORY _ ,

The petitioner is requesting approval for the rezoning of BRENTWOOD, LOT 1 also known as
1106 N. Armstrong from R-3 to C-2. The owner of the property, Yolanda Zapata, would like to
house a restaurant in the house at this address. Rezoning the property C-2 would allow this as well
as continued use as a multi-family residence. The Javelina zoned C-2, face Amstrong Avenue sits
one block north of the subject property. The lots further north along Armstrong to Corral Avenue
are also zoned C-2. Going south along Armstrong Avenue from the subject property 60% of the
lots between Avenue B and Richard Street are zoned C-2. These properties are a mixture of
residential properties and retail establishments including a Subway restaurant, convenience stores
and a strip mall. '




1106 N Armstrong Street October 22 2044

FIELD INSPECTION AND PERTINENT DATA
A field inspection of the property has shown that the building on the subject property is a multi-

family dwelling.

'STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In general, the Planning and Zoning Commission considers the following factors when a
recommendation on zoning district changes:
1. Whether the proposal is in conformance with the goals and policies contained in all
elements of the 2008 Master Plan.
2. Whether the proposal is in keeping with the purpose of the zoning districts.
s ===d=VWhether the proposalis-detrimental-to-public-health-safety and-welfare:
4. Whether the proposal is detrimental to existing or potential adjacent land uses.
5. Whether the proposal will generate traffic levels inappropriate, hazardous or detrimental to
the existing or potential nearby land uses.

Staff recommends approval of this request with the following findings: . |
1. Whether the proposal is in conformance with the goals and policies contained in all
elements of the 2008 Master Plan.
Whether the proposal is in keeping with the purpose of the zoning districts.
Whether the proposal is not detrimental to public health; safety and welfare.
Whether the proposal is not detrimental to existing or potential adjacent land uses.
Whether the proposal will not likely generate traffic levels inappropriate, hazardous or
~detrimental to the existing or potential nearby land uses.

DB W

Prepared by: C uﬁ.,é-h&,\,:&_ N
Cynthia Martin, Interim Director of Planning and Development Services




K my

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
PLANNING AND ZONING DIVISION
MASTER APPLICATION
' PROPERTY INFORMATON {Please PRINT or TYPE)

(Prooosed) Subdivisjon Name Block
/,o%/. 2 o5 Ul Fngsy 7

Existing Zoning Dasignation - % - Future Land Use Plan Deamnat;on C@m V}/\ C"

OWNERJAPPLICANT INFORM Tl r TYPE)

ApplicantAuthorized Agent @%, TAO-cBE 36
Email Address (for project correspondence only): ¢, /’)Q,

Mailing Address| 7/ - L, 71T NE k:'i'ty , Statc Zf)é ‘ &253

Property Owner

N: (Flz?se PRINT ©

3@522@- 318

Froject Address //ﬁé' A/ ArMWé}@ ersect;mﬁf%?f#ﬂf?ﬁ*’%\/ﬁﬂ _
X

74

Email Address (for p;:)jz}ct correspondence onl,f) H 0ne

dMailing Address City State Zip

! Select appropriate process for which approval is sought. Attach completad checklists with this application.

__Annexation Request.......................No Fee _ _Prefiminary Plat._..._................ Fes Varnes
___ Administrative Appeal (ZBA)......... .. $250.00  ___ FinalPlat ... e, Fee Varjes
__ Comp. Plan Amendment Request..,.5 250.00 — MinorPlat..... ... . §100.00
_\ZR-e-zoning Request..........._...........§250.00 _Re-plat.. ... £ 25d.00
___sup Reques‘dRenewal........‘.... ey 5 250,00 _ NacatingPtal.........................% 50.00
__Zoning Variance Request (ZBA}........5 250.00 __Deveioprﬁem Plat. ... .............8100.00
—PUDReguest... ... ... $250.00 ___ Subdivision Varance Raguest....5 25.00 ea.

Flease provide a bagic descripti f Ihe prop sed project: F?‘é / 0 C‘Q”L‘a qug
mm 7 NG e K)nagsJi/le T @ s
;ﬁym“fh/m@ Ate; KivigsJitle , 7X
M /1’55/ e sTieet ’f’)"bm TAMKIC Y 7

| hereby certify that | am the owner and/or duly authordzed agent of the awner for the purposes of this

apphcahcr | further cedify that | have read and examined this apglication and know the same 16 be true and

} correct. [F any of Ihe infermation provided on Lhis application is incorrect the permit or approval may be

revoked.

Applicant’s Signalure:

Propeny Owner(s) Signature; SRl ¢ ,;,I et/ Hate: q — ‘FT'-—- \\'\

Accepled by QK{C M A2 Date: C} /S /(7/
/] A~

) V v



- Pecit fezone o8 M. rwstens(R3 )
e C2.

37 o~ Sow ;] /b( B U7, ) er



City of Kingsville ‘

21009

/ Armstroﬂng |

\l \/ \/ \/ . ;f
o N N N \/
) ™N| ™ ™~ :
N | O 0
= ‘*“'"QJ'_: “—_,g—, T@‘:t— [ .v—% EaErTeY = - -
~ N ™ ~

ot Path: MAEnginesringlGI5 Tecns\MAP SIMAP _COCUMENTS\rc_Ciy_Utlides_Map_3.5x31.mxd

Drawn By: Engineering

Deparment
Iy s)
~a Last Update: 10212014
-3

Note:

DISCLAIMER
THIS MAP IS FOR VISUAL PURPOSES ONLY.
THE INFORMATICN ON THIS SHEET MAY
CONTAN INACCURACIES OR ERRORS.

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE IS NOT
RESPONSIBLE IF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED
HEREIN IS USED FOR ANY DESIGN,
CONSTRUCTION, PLANNING, BUILDING,

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
200 E. Kleberg
Kingsville, Texas 783563
Office: 361 595 B0OS




Fro.

LR’

Survey FLat

TO ALL PARTIES INTERESTED IN PREMISES SURVEYED:

“This iun to

wertily that 1 have, this date, male a carelf) awl fccurate

survey on tie ground ol proporty Lacatind at

IIO4 Arms [}
uotiio6_Armabre gain the city of Kingaville + Texas, described as follows:
Lot HNo. 1 aﬂld 2 ¢ Block Ho. afl BENTWOOD SUBDIVISION

Micdition, ‘ucl'r:orttiml ke Lhe

l of the Map

Irlat recorded in Envelope - 1dg

Rocords of Kleberg County Texas Nuyer: Sary 5, Bagelrman

1L

- aBo"

S 1ISS.O0! ' =l L=
A S8.9° N N S 21" . e Y
l-l'urrn'.::'ne l"-u-u:e—-_/ l:f._f.!!.. -

Building Lima — .
; Pl

5" Private LWLE. ir-g°

H | A

- rouml that
tlood hazared

LOTE: Tio .l.
ko wall.

. r:...r; < -Ci:q;Igr—) o
RMSTRONG - AvE! (6O ROW.)

s [rom lot Eine Lo foundation of house. 'ilml:;c itl!‘i‘l“lu't_‘ll from wall

ST THE LLIENGOLDERS ALD/OR TRE ORUGHS OF 'i‘xlE: L’IIT.HI';[.S SURVEYED AMD T0 TUE TITLE

IUSURANCE COR

STy nneders igend
Iorally doneril
aepees Inarea, by
Qb wRys, CHoops

bPaid RELYING LRAEOH"
rlors horehy corbify Lhat e socvey ws bls duy ukx ks on Che yrosl oL the pregorty
o heroon, ekl B cugreel;, awed Lt Uu-u- are no diserepine s, ooulLicts, short-
anbary cond Liebs, cnerasehmentbs, overlapedg of ingeovencnls, gasenenks o 1 iyht -
s shoen boveon sl b sikd properky bas occess Lo ot From a dedioaled e beay .

“Fliis Iz Lo eertify that I Rave caasulied a IE!([(.‘I.':IL Ensuraner Flood Ihezdrsd day and

[ ul.urLy tleseribed hereln is {or) Ls nutl ,/ lu-. ated Lo a special
area.” - .

14

Hh day of _ Fabruary . 1285 .

Daleel:
SIONED sz I /ﬂ"-/"-
17

i
Seales 17

20

bom & REHMET ENGINEERING ING. |

ALICE TEXAS

CONSULTING ENGINEERS SURVEYORS { " -




October §, 2014

gt LT,

The Kingsville Chamher of Coteriercs beld a ribban cutting for Flaurishing Hope Cournssiing an
Wedrnesday, Sept. 24, The counseling service is located in the Chander of Commeree building ar
655 E. King Ave. dngel Hoadye, MSLSC, offers afl types f cornseling services and lovks - farward
10 helping thore who she serves, {Submiitred itam)

Chamber hosts ribbon cutting for Javelina Station

T S b %

e Kingsville Chtaruber af Comuncree held a ritban cutting ox Tuesiay, Sapr 23, for Trvefing
Statfor: Stustent Fovsing located af 1300 W, Corral  The mewdy renodeled facility is for Tevas
AcM Uiiversity-Ringsville studenats ard staff to tive, Jeeoh Gubicrrer and Genesis Urban
weicomed hose in uttencdenes nad gave e o taur of the ficility, (Sulritred itemt)

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Plaming & Zoning Commission of the City of Kingsville will hot¢
2 Paplic Hearing Wedneyday, October 22, 301 ot 6:06 p.m. whergin the
Commission will discuss aslfor ke action on the foflowing items and i
which time afl ineeestcd persons wilk be Tizard:

FTEM 31 - Yolwda Zapata. Qwner - Bequestivg the rezone of
Benewaad Lot 1, aku knawn as 1H6 N, Armstroug rezoned fram
{R3) ¥ukti-Femilly Dissrict 1 ((2) Rerdi Diszrict,

e rieeeting will be beld 3¢ Cley Hatl, 200 Enst Kleberg, in the O ity
Commissivn Chambers, [f you huve any questions about the items an the
agenda, pleuse contact the Planning Separment at (J361) 5958053,

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The City Commiusion af the City of Kimuscilfe will huid = Public Hearing
Mouday, Oowober 27, 2014 2 6:00 pm. wherein the Cliy Comimission
will discuss andfor sake acrion on sbe Bllowing s and at which time
alf iterested persons walf be heard:

IFEM 27 ~ Yalanda Zopate, Owner - Requesting {3e rezone of
Bentwaad Lok F, alse konown as HI8G N, Armstraag rezoncd from
{R3) Mulei-Family District f (€2) Recait Diserice.

The meering will be held 3 Ciiv Hall, 200 East Kleberg. in the Ciry
Comimnission Chambecs. I you have dny quostiotis about lie itoms on the
agendhi, pleass contact the Ciiy Secremry at {361) 593-8H12,

-

Avertiy, CF: spaks am the

Clementts speaks at state dental conference

TR

T

Br. Charles Clements, a local deniist practicing i Xingwille for miore than 37 years, was
recently & clinicul speaker for the Texas Acadety of Genzral Dentistry Annual Meeting in

v adh iges of using lnsers in dhe wodern dental praciice,
The crwead Lovestar Dental Mecting fosters continuing education Jor detistt as well us
hanaring the Texas Dentist of the Year: Clemensts, o master in the ecademy of general dentistry,
lives with fix wife and two dogs in Loyola Beach Clamants (far right) & pictired with fellme
speakers und AGD sfffcials i Austin. (Subrritted itam}

~Food inspection scores released

Staff Report datrierit violations.
Foad $ervice insp Critscal tataric are
are conducted on 4 quartedy  imprager  practicss  and

schadule pec year bated on
lhe risk category o imsure
compliance with the Texas
Pood Service Establishment
Regulations amd local food
sanflation ordinances. Risk
lesels chude low, moderare
and high k. BstahfisAment
scuring is based on 2 demerit
awsienn, as per the Texas Food.
Establishmen? Rples, There
are fe Types of riolations
Critlcal violaflans zee five
and four peint.demerits ger
viclation and  nua-critical
vinlations are three point

actionsthat diecelyconiriluze
% fod conmmination and
letperature abase fhar aray
pase = potenrial risk w die
public Bealth, resuiting in
food bome dlness, Ceitical
viakstions must be corrected
immedsately or as directad by
ifie Health Depastment.
Mon-critical  wiolasions
2te umaccepiable  pructices
that normally relate to the
physial condition of an
cstablishreent, including
equipment,  cleaning  and
storage. Nog-erifival

viakiions must be comected
before the nest mutine
Inspection ar as direced by
the Healih Depariment.

+ & & | Fooud Mart-100
.+ DavesQuick $iop-101

« Subway/Brahma-108

« Suntiy Market-100

= § Breeze Drive Tho- 1OG

« Donut Palace-95

« Kentncky Pried
Chicken-9¢

+ Stop & Shap-93

+Sepeetie Foad Mart-93

+ Comfrut [nn-33

 Star’s Drive Thry-87

» Wendy's-37

+ Kingsville Food Mart- 36

» Mike's S10p & Shop-35

Raul is committed

=

cen5i6-0011

Yith over 10 years experience,

sales and service that exceads
your expectations.

asn 720-0007 s

Biake Fulenwider Dodge Chrysler Jeep ]
welcomes

to delfver




AGENDA ITEM #2



KINGSVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL MEMORANDUM

October 30, 2014
TO : Vincent J. Capell, City Manager
FROM : Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police
SUBJECT : Request for Confirmation of Appointments to Police Reserve Force

As per the City of Kingsville Code of Ordinances and with particularity Part 2 Code of
Ordinances, Chapter IIT Administration, Article 4 Police Department, Section 3 Police Reserve
Force the Chiel of Police shall appoint the members of the reserve force from a list of eligibles
compiled as provided. ;

The two applicants Amanda E. Cavazos and Monica Salinas have met the eligibility
requirements and qualifications as set forth in City of Kingsville Code of Ordinances and with
particularity Part 2 Code of Ordinances, Chapter III Administration, Article 4 Police Department,
Section 3 Police Reserve Force 4-23

All of the applicants are at least 21 years old at the time of appointment.

All of the applicants have graduated from high school or attained a GED certificate
All possess a valid Texas Driver’s license

All are citizens of the United States

All are licensed as peace officers to the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement.

Foawp

I have submitted their resumes for review and request the City of Kingsville’s City Commission
to approve their appointment to the Police Reserve Force.

Please place this item on the next available City Commission Agenda for consideration. Thank
you for your assistance regarding this matter.



CITY OFKINGSVILLE
ARPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT

13685 Without regard to raes; goler, refigiop,

i Weroffer equal employ ) |
-disability, ¢ any othér legally profected stats,

. -age, marital or veterans’ sk PR

Lt Name

i t’DLI‘lurnlmrlSt&:lte
| Ceimmercial DL -

[ #of¥eas |

- Schoof Completed |

ZO=—-uBooom | |

| College o]

School

m|

Ueverworkedor the City before?
150, When? Mativear_ 7

O Z Cc 0 A o X OO .

Ns&; coutt date, and place Wheéreconviction occurred.

" gontited] of traffc volafions fr the past three (3jyears? ) Yes é No

| Have you b j
in feill.

if yes; describe

Note: | n ” o
Sanviction of & folony ey riof automiafically disqualify-an apolicant for smployment.

| State the name of relatives:wor

gforthe City. ‘Specify their refdtionship-arid department i which they work.




Startwith rost recenf or pfésent employer and coniplete in full. Include full and pérttime employment.

“CumrentPrior Employer

 Telephoiie Number

8’5@ 829 e

Aﬂ’dress, Cxty Staie le )
o Lozt
g S Haoosed By, Ste. 850, Se. LDu;gtM@

Emp{eyed (Month/Year)
From: . To: .

“'l'f% l 513 Cf)m ot

livigdiate: SUpPEVISHr.

Heus[y Pay
Btaiti st

<BO-HP—x -4z m‘f&-ﬂ@ o a:f}m

' Reasbmfbr"!_eaming::

Address c;;y, StaTeLZJp L
T84d1r

17 8. Prooe |s. Dk Q&:@usct-l—uswf_!(‘

- | Immediate Supervisor

Vi sl b}eﬂj‘ Ves

Start: Last

sw.oafg.,, - BRrE |

. [ State Joks Tile-and Dufies:

t‘ F, o L R Y e i T g o i . B -
¥ Corammumicario Wir Costpnds T Aedaye

=< T O ot 2 +mwgﬁmrﬁaw

Hea | Redsen for teavmg

 Prioy Employer

fmmed[afe Sup‘ervasor

Mmsou mﬂbﬁm

0 OFRLE SUPPoeT SYARF, E¥iri VEL] EXMgOR G

=< 0. Q;.\-:l M= -2 g -« OmiE m |

Mmaétéﬁ DPV"-H PLp,.,snlpﬁ. Covzorsrrnges | 3 gu{.gzvﬁ

‘Redson forleaving’
i | Coutis o LnGap

Whex. R Tee
L& PrrEsY.

SIEGENT Corr plpmse & WiTH Ruues § Eceuandig

o May ve:- contact this-employer?
& Yes ~N&




| Priof Employer

S

 Telephore:Nyfmber

%?t 533 ‘Israg

Address, City, State, Zip

8,57 Mowr, G

T’-G-,f.;_ . :
&3]s004

- Immediate Supervisor:”

T Droging

Stafa Jeb T itlearnd E)ut[es

ﬁmgﬂméi ~'ZM'E < O rpEm

7.77.'. May -
. Q ¥&g _'@_No

5 contact this emp[oyér? B

Prior Erﬁpri;gyefr: il

= T&E$hﬂﬂébﬁﬂﬁbéc

- Address, City, Stale, Zip

lop M O O

lmmadxate Supervigor:

T Sa?wwsara ’Rag@ Wonle Mot Cave Lag |7

S‘ara.«reevc-e w::e_s;eo CLusst#

{

- Fo ER T TE. (R B<or oS m

1" Brior Employer

Mesate Sue 0

AN

Address, City, State; Zip

552 Obderis a@>%@oc3wﬁzm,

W%B

FIGHL

0#@@&

- | Immiediate Supervisor:

| Hourly Pay
Start:

faBD[h,

- State dob Titlerand, Duties:
| PercfonsidiLe Foe Das Sroes Rectoepmont

-
]NVDL‘{JED WiTH AssenmBUnié Costomer. Bugen.

i Feonioes cusroiree Sexev e

RO w—T -zma <0 o=

Reason for Ieavmg

Pelccomms T T

May we centact thjs employer?
Yes No




SPECIAL TRAINING OR SKILLS  ~~  —

infarafion: soch -as special $kills, training, military experience (include dafes of active
liefice, equipment Operation, orgualificatiofs Youfest Wit be helpful (o us.in considering

“ Teiephone Number D

. y.&%tu:ﬂ;z P Sewinvz el Erpmuals
Address City “State %5

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING STATEMENTS CAREFULLY ANGINDICATE YOUR' UNDERSTANDING
AND AGCEPTANGE BY SIGNING'THE SPACE PROVIDED

1. information: provided by Bie in connestion With i application, WHatHer 6h This
ot is true-and compl ! ynder ement, falsification, of ofissian
of infermation maybe grounds-for refusal to ireor, if ;
2.

3. | understand that the City of Kingsville will chieck crimirial history with 2 third party on every applicant for
éfmployment: ’ ' )

Ay Person oF organiz: f:on referenced in this application: to-give you any and all information
B p!’ 5F any ottiet-infortdation: they fight have, personal or

¢ 1 v y this application, and | rélease-all such parties
rom firnishing stich: inforratioi to- You.

e gties ok lchide 8r cover éanfidentiar medical informatlon-or information refating to work-refafed
employment andfar personnef fifes;

orersones S (L] 9L .
THIS APPLICATION MUST BE SIGNED HERE: Jo- Jek- E'Li-
Signatire -Apyfrcant } . Date _

Angust 2008




AMANDA E CAVAZOS
T NS o TX7% |l

OBIECTIVE

fon, sgthat mye 'ucatmrr, trammg,skl[ls;. anchua!rﬂcatwnscan
GF lifs InEfi&communit

231314613~ Current.

10/9/2013—12f33h013

3102009 ~~g/26f2013

Fsupenision of Upteds affice supgiort staff, effactlvély-ensuring
ng

pportsystems ingl udmgjt but notfimited ta; infake, scheddling,

[ SUPpArt systems: Fora Branch ofilces.

Denigits{rate 3y abllltymworkm hrghlystaessfui orgmergancy sftuation-with high Tevel 5Fi conceniration and
COMposure:

‘Salas Assacist

‘BoseDalfas 1%

3filz007—258k00y

- Interacted daily with customiers & thesalds flogr, éarning top sales forsaveral menths,
- Perforniad all dutis réfated i praductdispays an-sales figer; incfuding reniountingrand witing flogt séts.
- Trained or productsand product technologias, allowing flesibility to keep upwith changes frtechivolagies,




EDUCATION

o5lz7lasis—Tafo3/30ig

v8foil2006—05/06 f250%

COMMUNITY, SERVICES

- Ralsedfoyer s200 ForBreast Cancer Awarenass,

# Supporr.eﬁhhe State Empfoyees Ehiarteably Cariipaign botf-with tieket sales sna fumimage sdfes for yovo,
20%%, 2012, and currenthy "efpmgwfth 2014 campaiga.

: Volyrteer: avechgrehfundeaisars

PERSONALPROFILE

SKILLS

- - Ablé tospesk, tead,and-writs Spaish.
- Corfigiuter: MSWoird, PowarPairit; Excel, Otittosk, Internet Resgareh, & Allscripfs.

- Excellent comifiunication and organizationst skifls;

REFERENCES

< Avalizble upon Fequest.




CITY OF KINGSVILLE
APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT

thiout regard fo-ace, color, raligion,
L orany other fe ___y*pratecfed statirs.

We offer equal employment opportunitfes fo all perga:
age, marital or veterans' status,-sex; national origin, disahbili

T omeom oz om oW

First — Middie | HomeFhone =~
Metiica KA, RUA

_ SﬁefetAdefress City, State, Zip ' Cell F’hﬂne ] -

57&363

Klngs_vile

Hre _ycu eueﬁ-ihe--ége{eﬁa? G Yes !]s};}

D you.have B legal Fighi to work in ther . S? T Yes €) To

Are your ctrrently ermployed? ) Yes {0 No |TpacfEmpioyment

---- LFull [ PartdTime

Leave'days‘ avairable M T W TH F S Su 'Haur$.=ax,aglabief From:___

Clitrent DL NumberfState: s ' ' = —

Commerc:afDL ! Yes (T ype } ! Ne

Z2O—=-Prooom

.. School

e i yen

grédiate?

 Locatlon{City, State)

- Bﬁésie‘; Peace |4 months  |yes Basie
: fhﬁsﬁi‘\é‘ ’

Séhaol

Highe

P 2 Cc 03" & X 0 B m

,;'Haveyoﬂ &verworked forthe, City: before? ! Yes ,_@Ncr o
| €6, when? Morithivear " f Lacation/Dept:

j Have you— ever: been convr

AAAAA ;qf ot'pled gurlty-or o cantgst” fo g felonyin the past tert 10y years’r‘
L Yes _G) No Iiso, state offense, couri dafe, and placs. where convietion tccurred,

Have'you been convieted of fraffic wolations In the past thies (3) years? _Q Yés G No
Hyes, describe infull.

Note:,
EConviction of a felony may not automaticelly disqualify a7 applibant for employment.

Staté the name of relatives working for the City. Specify their elationship and department In which they wark.

Ala




Start With most. récent or present empiloyer and complete in full. iHelude full and. parf time employment,

i CurrentiPnor Emplover

Unemploymert

| Telepbone Nmber

N/A

| Address, City, State, Zip

NIA

Ertiloyed (MontyYear,
From: Tear

TAQ~O—E 4 EMESOr™ g-_,-‘m ;

itmmediate-Supervisor:

Houréy F’ayr _
Skait: Last:

- State Job Tille and Duties:

Reason forleaving: -

f MgWe cagtacf th : emp[’oyer?

Yes _£¥ No

Frigr Empfayer

Kle , f:rg Co Shem‘fs Ofﬂc:e

Telephone Number

361-595-8500

Employed. gMonth!Year}

| Erom: 03122112 T oasrzon.

- -Heurly E’a}r o ’ _
St 1189 009

<@ O~¢p— T _—i‘:‘.lz%:-m.i'g » fg;: e

F charg 3 bf Praperty

May We: cantact This employer?

. No

.Pniar:Empioyer

LCS

Téi:ephonéfNumber’ —

" Address; City, State, Zip

4909 Farm Market Road 2826

Emp!oyed (Monthl"{ear)
"R 0812009 ™ 10/2000

| [mmiediate:Supervisor:

Unknown

: Houriy Pay

1150 HE4150

-<“:U Q~h—T —=m s OI“UE m

- State Job Title and Dutfes;
i Corréctions Officer ,Siipetvise of inmates

T Reason for leaving:

Loss of Trasportation

May we coritact thls emproyer?
G Yes f} No




- 0 -w:-—- :l: -+ zm?; =0 F".‘"!J.V'E'fm

Ptior Ernployer

Raytheon

Te!eéh_éné Nﬁmber

361-348-2712

‘Address, City, State, Zip

N Hwy 281 Premont,tx 78375

Employed (Month/Yeary.
T 0olo002 T /2005

Tmmediate Supen&sor

' Hourly Pay

Start:

1600 “F1o.60

Cleaning Maintain Grass-around Building

State Job Title and Dufies: ' o ' Reas}ort;f@r feaving:
-Janitor/Ground Mainteriance ... Malntain Building Attehd Schicel

centact this employer'?

May
. Na

o,

- Prior Emplb.yer

1 Telephone Nurnbet

Address, City, State, Zip Empioyed (Monthz‘Y eary
From: To:
“Immediate-Supervisor. Hourly Pay.
staft; Last:

[ STONB~T HEZmMI<OT0Im

Stats Job Tills and Dufies:

Reasor for. leaving:

_ May we contaet this- emp[ayer?

O Yes O No

T A DT O mEm

i Pr.id'é'Emp'IdeE }

Telephone Number

P;cfdi'ess;_ City, Sfafe, Zip:

Employed (Month/¥Year)
From: Té:

immediate Supervisor:

' Hourly Pay

Start: Last:

State Job: Title and Dutigs:

' Reason for leaving:

May we contact this employer?
O Yes _O Mo




SPECIAL TRAINING OR SKILLS

Provide any additional inforiation such as special skills, training, military expetfence (include dates of active:

duty), management experience, equipment opération, o qualifications youl.feel will'be-helpful for us in. considering
your application. '

PERSONALREFERENCES
(Dg not list relatives or former errplogets)

City

Kingsvills ,

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING STATEMENTS CAREFULLY AND INDICATE YOUR UNDERSTANDING

AND-ACCEPTANCE:BY SIGNING THE-SPACE PRQVIDED

2. lunderstand thaf as a condition of employment, | will bé required fo-provide legal proof of authorization to
work intheUnited States; ’ ’

3. | Understand that the.City of Kingsville-will check-eriminal history with a third party on‘every: apglicant far
employment -

4. Tautharize any pérson or organizafion taferericad in this application to give-you any and alt information
eoreerning my previous employment, on, or'any other inforimation they might have, personal or
otherwise, with regard fo any of the subjects cove d by“this dpplication, and | rélease ali such parfies

from alt liability from any damages-which may result fr s '

mishing stch informatior 16 e,

This waiver and release does notlnclude 6 cover confideditial:iisdical information-

Inftirfes that méj be tontalned if my sinplo ymenf.aﬁgg!gfﬁer@qné Lfiles.

“Igformation relating {0 Work-refatad
P r”
SIGN

THIS APPLICATION MUST BE SIGNED ~ HERE: [/ / g X }O/ !L/j/ /4

Y " Signalure — Appli€ant ' Bate !

Augpst 2008




MONICA SALINAS
TR i< ville, TX 78363 AU

WORK EXPERIENCE

Kleberg County Sheriff Office , Kingsville, Tx
Jailer ; March 2012 thru April 2014

LCS Corrections, Robstown,Tx

Correctional Officer : August 2009 thru October 2009

Kleberg County Sheriff Office , Kingsviile, TX
Jailer : October 2008 thru August 2009

Kleberg County Sheriff Offics, Kingsville, Tx
Jailer: October 2007 thru Febriiary 2008

Raytheon Tec. Setvices, Premont, Tx

Janitorf Grounds Keeper : February 2002 thru January 2005




Education

A.C.Jones High School ,Beeville, Tx - Graduated 1993
CBC, Kingsville,Tx Attended 2002 completed 27 hours (Criminal Justice )

Delmar Police Academy — Graduated 2014 (Basic Peace Officer )
PERSONAL REFERENCES
Michael Chavans — (361) 228-2233
513 E. Shelton
Kingsville, Tx
Sandy Galindo-{ 361) 522- 3208
327 E. WMiller
Kingsville, Tx 78363
Amanda Cavazos = (361) e uy®

Corpus Christi , Tx




REGULAR AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #3



RESOLUTION #2014-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A
GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE KING HIGH
HISTORICAL FOUNDATION AND THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE; REPEALING
ALL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the King High Historical Foundation is currently working to preserve
the old H. M. King High School building built in 1909 and located at Kleberg
Avenue and North 3™ Street here within the city limits of the City of Kingsville;
and,

WHEREAS, the King High Historical Foundation has begun to improvement to
the building so that it could be used as a new City Hall, while preserving its
historical features and history for years to come; and,

WHEREAS, the old H. M. King High School is located in the Historical District of
Kingsville and would be a critical asset to the revitalization of the downtown area;
and,

WHEREAS, the City has previously committed in 2012 via resolution to: (1) a
contribution of $2 million toward the restoration project, (2) a long term lease for
the building that is the subject of the restoration project, and (3) a commitment
from the City to maintain the building that is the subject of the restoration project
upon commencement of and for the duration of the lease,

WHEREAS, the King High Historical Foundation and the City have negotiated a
long term lease of the building.

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsvilie, Texas:
l.

THAT the City Manager is authorized and directed as an act of the City of
Kingsville, Texas to enter into a Ground Lease Agreement by and between the
King High Historical Foundation and the City of Kingsville in accordance with
Exhibit A hereto attached and made a part hereof.

II.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.



THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
10" day of _November . 2014.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



#4538743.6

GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT

by and between

KING HIGH HISTORICAL FOUNDATION

as Landlord
and
THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE
as Tenant
dated , 201

Kleberg County, Texas



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

1. DEINIIONS. ettt ettt ettt bbbt e et s e s s ens st ereneaesren e saa e e seeateaes 1
() DElVETrY Date.....c.ccuiieeirecioect et s e s s e b et et se e e s sean s raas e 1

(D) EFfECIVE DAL ..ccceeiiieiririiitte ittt e e ses cre e sts s s sanaeesneshoanas s 1

{c) Leased PremliSes .. ..o iiiiiririircecceriee e s see s esiassaesaeseesne s s e sssessenssesensbes s en st esnennes 1

() POIMITEES...ciiviiiii ettt et et et e s et beseesresnenntens 1

(e)  Permitied EXCEPHONS .ucoveirreecriecrree e e re s s e s e sn bbb bt re e srnns s s 1

() Property TAXES vuiivicciiiiisitiniiisiiiesiiere v sreee s rr e sre s saeesns s sae e e e sn s esaeensesnssssssesarsesastas 1

2. DIIMISE. ..ovvieeiriereeeimrrerrecereee et cte et et et ss et et et e eessse e eanesaansesboneeabarsesssssenssanasseassantasbansens 1
(&) DIEIMIISE ..ottt et b bbb et a e bbb ae b st er b e ra b et e s aan b e enesnbane s 1

(b) B K 5 1 1 OO SRV S PR P RO 1

(c) OPTIONS o1ttt e st e s e e e sre s e s s s ese s e st e st es et eseasantersbesbantsannessannas 2

(d) Quiet ENJOYMENT .....viiiiiieeit ettt e etr e r e s b e sa s sb e srn e sene s ea s annis 2

(e) Landlord’s TILE «..eceoieeeerer sttt st s reens 2

3 RENT .. ettt et e sttt be b st b e s e re s b e e anaraanreas 3
4, Delivery; Improvements, Additions and Repairs; Signage......ococeveericrereireineessescseeane 3
(a) Delivery of Leased PremiSes ......ccvvvvevieriecereciriceeeecieeesseets e s 3

(b)  Acceptance of Premises on an "AS IS, WHERE IS" BasiS........ccocveeeveeiescsvenennns 3

() Alterations and IMPrOVEIMENTS ......cccveeieeeeieeeseee et ss s s sassneate s 4

(d) EVITORMENTAL. ....coiriceee ettt saeas .6

(e) REPAILS ..ttt e e et et er b et n e e 6

(04 TENANT’S FIXEUTES ..ovvveeeecieien ettt st e s s b st st e b esessbenne s 7

(8)  Tenant SiZNS. ...ttt et bere bbb en e nnesarntens 7

(h)  Mechanics’ TACIIS cuuueireieeeieeeiieeeteese et e e sae st et et es e a e e et seene sreneenesar s seneereneesen 7

5. PLOPEITY TAXES ..evirrieeieccrre ettt s st e e rae et asae s s s ebe st e vas s besbessserassanensenssesnsesasens 8
6. LS. ottt s e ea b e aa et et ee s sraresnesaa s erentsrenean 8
7. Use, Transfers or ASSIZNIMENTS. .uuuicvieieiriieererse e siecreee st esbets et eeaesanesevansseessnanessesesnens 9
(a) TENANE'S USC t.uiiiiiiiiciiiit sttt r e e e e s e ae e eenee s s e e s eens s esassensbenans 9

(b)  Tenants Substantial COmMPIEHON ......cvcveeeeirrereceee et et e sr s s snes 9

(© Landlord Termination Rights........cocoeeiniiiiiiie e, 9

#4338743.6



10.

11.

12.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

{continued)

Page
(d)  Assignment, SUBIEIINE .cvecvi ettt bt 9
()  Landlord Right 0f ACCESS ..cccoivriiiiiiiciie sttt sre s e 10
Indemnification, INSUTAICE. .....ciiviiiiciiececeeiis ittt eeereesseereeesseesesessaeesaseesesnsessaseeens 10
(2)  IndemnifiCation .......ccccoi ettt eb st ettt e 10
(D) TOSUTANCE ..ot ireveerererirerieseseser e et se e e e seeae st eseesaessssrressas s bvnssrenroneresnesanessaseneenes 11
(€©)  Waiver Of SUBIOZANON ....ccivuviirrrereieeeetesteer et eee ettt e eress s sre b e et sbeeaseseeane s 14
Destruction, Condemnation. .......cccviviirinienieieie e sre s sreeseessestsssassessaesevasesseneas 14
(a) DIESITUCHION ...ttt bt e e sae e enssbes e eabesreaneseeons 14
(b) CONAEMNATION .....veveirrrrireireiereee e et ce e ie s sreess e sss st st eseessesssasorssbesmeranenmeanesnesns 15
DETAULL. ..ttt et b e e be s ea s be bbbt s b ee e e ne s neseneane 17
() Events of Default ... e 17
(b))  Landlord’s RemMEBIs ...eercriveeeieriiee ettt s v s sereseessrese ene et een e seeaes 18
TEnANE’S PIOPEITY .o.cvuivrieeiniriininrintiscnti sttt b s 20
GENEral PTOVISIONS. ..oveiiiiiricriire ettt s eeae bt e e e ene e b s es s e s s s ns e 20
(a) INOLICE 1. - vavitiairiirere st e st ee e e et b aae et eaesa s e e bessensesesesssensensassnnes 20
(b) Entirg ABIrECmMENt . c..coviieiiiiiiiceeieseres e ee s ettt sae s sae bt sas st b e s st 21
(c) COMIMISSION 111ttt et s e st e b e resrsrre s e saeb e ae s e s sevasssennanens 21
(d) FOTCE MAJEULET ....oueieiiniiirirctrrreetiens e ssesaess e esaeseseeesssbeas et ebesssan st absesenentonanens 21
(e) SUITEIET ...t ecreeret et stne et e sbe st et b es s besresbese b eneestesassesaesessanesssneaesaeasesnenss 22
() HOIAING OVEI .ottt ettt ss e 22
(g)  No Security Obligation .......oceeivreirrrrreirsecesscesese e erers et e ree e ane 22
(h)  WAIVER OF WARRANTIES AND ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITION............ 22
0] DTPA WAIVER ..ottt sttt s a s s e 23
)] WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY et 23
(k)  Limitation of Landlord’s Liabihty .....ccovevvivivivice st 23
)] Applicable Law, CONSIIICHON c..c.eoviirieirerearinseresstess s tesbeneseerereene s ssnsessnssesnns 23
(m)  Time of the ESSENCE ..o ittt e ettt s 24
() CAPHONS ceeeriee et ettt e bbb eessr s s et e e s bbb e te b et eae 24
(0)  Gender, NUMDET ...ttt s rb et e e e 24
(p) COUNECTPATTS .ottt e e e e sbe e st s e raess s e s eneesrnessane 24

-1i-~

#4538743.6



(@

EXHIBITS:

Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D
Exhibit E

#4538743.6

Binding Effect

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Legal Description

Memorandum of Leasc Form
Agreement dated December 11, 2008
Gift Deed dated December 4, 2009
Budget

-ifi-

............................................................................



GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT (“Lease¢™), dated as of ,201
is by and between KING HIGH HISTORICAL FOUNDATION, a Texas non-profit corporation
(*Landlord™) and THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, a Home Rule Municipal Corporation located in
Kleberg County, Texas (“Tenant”). For valuable consideration the parties agree and act as
follows:

1. Definitions. The following terms have the meanings set forth below:

(2) Delivery Date. The date upon which Landlord delivers exclusive
possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant in accordance with Section 4 below.

(b)  Effective Date. The date this Lease is signed by both Landlord and Tenant
as reflected on the signature page hereof.

(c) Leased Premises. That certain parcel of real property comprising
approximately 3.45 acres of land, situated in Kleberg County, Texas, and depicted on the Legal
Description attached hereto as Exhibit A, together with any and all improvements, fixtures,
personal property and equipment now or hercafter situated thereon, and any and all
appurienances, easements and privileges pertaining therefo.

(d) Permitees. All  partners, officers, directors, employees, agents,
contractors, customers, visitors and invitees of Tenant at the Leased Premises.

(e) Permitted Exceptions. All validly existing easements, rights of way, and
prescriptive rights, whether of record or not; all presently recorded and validly existing
restrictions, reservations, covenanis, conditions, oil and gas leases, mineral interests outstanding
in persons other than Landlord, and other instruments, other than conveyances of the surface fee
estate, that affect the Leased Premises.

(H) Property Taxes. All real estate taxes, assessments, improvements or
benefits, water, sewer or other rents, occupancy taxes, management district taxes and
assessments, and other impositions and charges of every kind and nature whatsoever, whether
general or special, foreseen or unforeseen (including all interest and penalties thereon), which at
any time during the Term may be levied, assessed, imposed, become due and payable or create
liens upon, or arise in connection with the Leased Premises.

2. Demise.

(a) Demise. Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant accepts from
Landlord under the terms, provisions and conditions of this Lease the Leased Premises
commencing on the Effective Date hercof and continuing until the expiration of the Term as
hereinafter provided.

(b) Term. The primary term (“Primary Term”) of this Lease shall commence
as of the Effective Date hereof, and shall expire on the last day of the twenty-fifth (25™) full year

#4538743.6



following the Delivery Date. The Primary Term and any extension thereof pursuant to Section
2(c) below 1s hereinafter referred to as the “Term”.

(c) Options. Tenant shall have the right to extend the Term for up to two (2)
additional ten (10) year periods (each an “Option Period™) upon the same terms, conditions and
provisions set out herein for the Primary Term. Each Option Period shall be deemed to be
automatically exercised by Tenant unless Tenant gives Landlord written notice that Tenant will
not extend the Term, such notice to be given at least one hundred eighty (180} days prior to the
expiration of the Primary Term with respect to the first Option Period, and at least one hundred
eighty (180) days prior to the expiration of the first Option Period then in effect with respect to
the successive Option Period thereafter.

(d) Quiet Enjoyment. Upon Tenant’s payment of all rent hereunder and
observance and performance of all of the covenants, terms and conditions to be observed and
performed by Tenant pursuant to this Lease, Tenant shall have throughout the Term the peaceful,
quiet and undisturbed use and possession of the Leased Premises and all rights and privileges
pertaining thereto, subject to the terms, conditions and provisions of this Lease.

(e} Landlord’s Title. Landlord covenants, represents and warrants to Tenant
as follows, to the current actual knowledge of Landlord with no duty to make investigations or
inquiries:

(1) Title. Landlord hereby represents and warrants that it owns good
and indefeasible fee simple title in and to the Leased Premises, subject only to the Permitted
Exceptions. This Lease shall not be recorded; however, to establish the status of Landlord’s title
and to establish the priority of Tenant’s Lease as a condition of title, Landlord and Tenant shall
execute a Memorandum of this Lease in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B which may be
recorded by Tenant at any time on or after the Effective Date. The Legal Description shall be
used as the legal description in such Memorandum.

{(2)  No Mortgages or Liens. The Leased Premises are at this time and
will at the time of the recording of the Memorandum of Lease be free from liens except those
reflected in the Permitted Exceptions.

3) No Actions. There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or
to Landlord’s actual knowledge without any duty of inquiry, threatened against Landlord or
otherwise affecting any portion of the Leased Premises, at law or in equity, or before any federal,
state, municipal or other governmental court, department, commission, board, bureau, agency or
instrumentality, domestic or foreign.

(4)  Authority. The execution and consummation of this Lease by
Landlord has been duly authorized and does not result in a breach of any of the terms or
provisions of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, agreement (including, but not limited
to, that certain Agreement dated December 11, 2008, by and between the Board of Trustees of
the Kingsville Independent School District and Landlord attached hereto as Exhibit C),
instrument or obligation to which Landlord is a party or by which the Leased Premises or any
portion thereof is bound, including, but not limited to those certain restrictions, reservations and

-
#4538743.6



covenants as set forth in Gift Deed, dated December 4, 2009, from the Board of Trustees of the
Kingsville Independent School District, as Grantor, to King High Historical Foundation, as
Grantee, recorded under Volume 425, Page 911, Official Public Records of Kleberg County,
Texas, attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Gift Deed”).

(5)  Condemnation. To Landlord’s actual knowledge without any duty
of inquiry, there are no pending or threatened condemnation or similar proceedings affecting the
Leased Premises.

(6) Leases. No leases or occupancy agreements affect the Leased
Premises.

3. Rent. Tenant shall pay Landlord the amount of One and No/100 Dollars ($1.00)
and other good and valuable consideration due on the Effective Date.

4, Delivery; Improvements, Additions and Repairs; Signage.

(a) Delivery of Leased Premises. Landlord shall deliver possession of the
Leased Premises to Tenant immediately upon the completion of renovations and issuance of a
certificate of occupancy, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions. Landlord and Tenant
expressly acknowledge and agree, as a material part of the consideration for Landlord entering
into this Lease with Tenant, that (i) Landlord has made no representations or warranties to
Tenant as to the condition of the Leased Premises, either express or implied, except as
specifically set forth in this Lease, (ii) Landlord and Tenant expressly disclaim any implied
warranty as to the habitability, fitness or suitability of the Premises for Tenant’s intended
commercial purpose, (iii) Tenant’s obligation to pay Rent hereunder is not dependent upon the
condition of the Leased Premises or the performance by Landlord of its obligations hereunder.

(b) Acceptance of Premises on an "AS IS, WHERE IS" Basis. TENANT
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS
LEASE:

§)) THAT NEITHER LANDLORD NOR ANY AFFILIATE OR
RELATED PARTY OF LANDLORD MAKES OR HAS MADE ANY WARRANTY OR
REPRESENTATION, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING (i) THE PHYSICAL
CONDITION OF THE PREMISES (INCLUDING THE GEOLOGY OR THE CONDITION OF
THE SOILS OR OF ANY AQUIFER UNDERLYING THE SAME AND ANY
ARCHECLOGICAL OR HISTORICAL ASPECT OF THE SAME), (ii) THE SUITABILITY
OF THE PREMISES OR ITS FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AS TO ANY USES
OR ACTIVITIES WHICH TENANT MAY MAKE THEREOF OR CONDUCT THEREON AT
ANY TIME DURING THE LEASE TERM, (iii} THE LAND USE REGULATIONS
APPLICABLE TO THE PREMISES OR THE COMPLIANCE THEREOF WITH ANY
GOVERNMENTAL RULES, (iv) THE FEASIBILITY OF THE PROJECT OR THE PROJECT
IMPROVEMENTS WORK OR ANY ADDITIONAL WORK, (v} THE EXISTENCE OF ANY
CONTAMINATED MATERIJALS OR ENVIRONMENTAL CLAIMS, (vi) THE
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PREMISES OR (vii) ANY OTHER

#4538743.6



MATTER RELATING TO ANY IMPROVEMENTS AT ANY TIME CONSTRUCTED OR TO
BE CONSTRUCTED THEREON;

(2) THAT NO REVIEW, APPROVAL OR OTHER ACTION BY
LANDLORD UNDER THIS LEASE SHALL BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED TO BE SUCH
A REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY;

3) THAT TENANT HAS BEEN AFFORDED FULL
OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT, AND TENANT HAS INSPECTED AND HAS HAD FULL
OPPORTUNITY TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH, THE CONDITION OF THE PREMISES,
THE BOUNDARIES THEREOF, ALL LAND USE REGULATIONS APPLICABLE
THERETC AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE DEVELOPMENT THEREOF;
AND

(4) THAT TENANT ACCEPTS, ON AN "AS IS, WHERE IS"
BASIS, THE LEASED PREMISES IN THE CONDITION IN WHICH THEY EXIST ON THE
EFFECTIVE DATE

(c) Alterations and Improvements. Beginning on the Delivery Date, Tenant
shall have the right, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, to renovate any and all existing
improvements as may be situated on the Leased Premises from time to time, including but not
limited to, buildings, parking areas, drives, landscaping, signage and lighting (collectively, the
“Tenani’s Improvements™) for Tenant’s use of the Leased Premises, subject to consultation with
Landlord’s point of contact set forth in Section 12(a) herein. All Tenant’s Improvements and
landscaping on the Leased Premises shall comply with any local government development
standards or zoning, including those of the City of Kingsville and Kleberg County.

(N Construction Standards. All of Tenant’s Improvements shall be
performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with all applicable laws, and all
governmental permits required and/or issued therefor. All such work shall be performed and
materials furnished at Tenant’s sole cost, expense and risk. Tenant shall not permit any liens to
attach to Landlord’s interest in the Leased Premises in connection with Tenant’s Improvements.

(2) Indemmity. TENANT AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND
AND HOLD LANDLORD HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ALL LIABILITIES, SUITS,
CAUSES OF ACTION, COSTS, FEES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION,
REASONABLE ATTORNEY’S FEES), DAMAGES AND CLAIMS (INCLUDING COSTS
AND EXPENSES OF DEFENDING AGAINST SUCH CLAIMS) OF ANY KIND ARISING
OR ALLEGED TO ARISE FROM THE NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF
TENANT OR OF TENANT’S AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, CONTRACTORS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, LABORERS, MATERIALMEN OR INVITEES OR ARISING FROM
ANY BODILY INJURY OR PROPERTY DAMAGE OCCURRING OR ALLEGED TO HAVE
OCCURRED INCIDENT TO ANY CONSTRUCTION DESCRIBED IN THIS SECTION 4(c).
The foregoing indemnity shall survive expiration or termination of this Lease.

#4538743.6



3) Plans. Following Tenant’s completion of any structural or exterior
alterations, additions or improvements, Tenant shall deliver the as-built plans and specifications
for such alterations, additions or improvements to Landlord.

4 Contractor Insurance. Tenant shall require that any contractors
used by Tenant carry and maintain, at no expense to Landlord, the insurance policies set forth
below, written by companies having a policyholder’s rating of A/X or better in the most current
edition of Best’s Key Rating Guide (or otherwise be acceptable to Landlord). None of such
policies shall be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced or materially changed in coverage or in
limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice shall have been given to Landlord by the
insurance carrier(s). All policies shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against Landlord and
shall be endorsed (excepting Workers” Compensation) to name Landlord as additional insured.
Tenant shall provide certificates of such insurance to Landlord prior to the commencement of
any work in the Leased Premises, however, Landlord reserves the right to require complete and
certified copies of all such insurance policies at any time (including, without limitation, the
additional insured and waiver of subrogation provisions or endorsements):

A. Commercial General Liability. Tenant, being insured
through the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (“TMLIRP™),
shall ensure TMLIRP issues an “EL-217-Indemnification under Contract”
endorseément relating to the Lease,

B. Workmen’s Compensation / Employer’s  Tiability.
Coverage shall insure contractor(s) under the Workers’ Compensation and
Occupational Disease Laws of the State of Texas in the full amount(s) required by
law. Employer’s liability coverage shall be at least $500,000 per accident,
$500,000 per disease per employee, and $500,000 for disease aggregate in respect
of any work or operations on or about the Premises;

C. Comprehensive Automobile Liability. Coverage shall be
for all vehicles owned, non-owned, hired or otherwise used in connection with
business operations on or from the Leased Premises (however, not less than
$500,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage);

D, Builder’s Risk. Contractor shall be responsible for
obtaining a completed value form covering all risks of physical loss or damage on
Tenant’s work in the Leased Premises, naming the interests of* Landlord and its
agents and employees and Tenant’s contractors, as their respective interest may
appear. In addition, such policy shall cover “soft costs” in connection with
additional expenses and lost income arising from delayed completion as a result
of damage or destruction; and

E. Additional Coverage. Tenant’s  contractor  shall
additionally insure against such other perils or legal risks and in such amounts as
Landlord may from time to time deem necessary.

#4538743.6



(d) Environmental. The term “Hazardous Substances,” as used in this Lease
shall mean pollutants, contaminants, toxic or hazardous wastes, or any other substances, the
removal of which is required or the use of which is restricted, prohibited or penalized by any
Environmental Law. The term “Environmental Law™ shall mean any federal, state or local law
or ordinance relating to pollution or protection of the environment. Tenant hereby agrees that
(1)1t will at its own expense, promptly comply with all Environmental Laws; (2) no activity
(including without limitation dry cleaning) will be conducted on the Leased Premises that will
produce any Hazardous Substance, except for such activities that are part of the ordinary course
of Tenant’s business (the “Permitted Activities™) provided said Permitted Activities are
conducted in accordance with all Environment Laws and have been approved in advance in
writing by Landlord; (3) the Leased Premises will not be used in any manner for the storage of
any Hazardous Substances except for the temporary storage of such materials that are used in the
ordinary course of Tenant’s business (the “Permitted Materials™) provided such Permitted
Materials are properly stored in a manner and location meeting all Environmental Laws and
approved in advance in writing by Landlord; (4) no portion of the Leased Premises will be used
as a landfill or a dump; (5) Tenant will not install any underground or above ground tanks of any
type; (6) Tenant will not allow any surface or subsurface conditions to exist or come into
existence that constitute, or with the passage of time may constitute a public or private nuisance;
and (7) Tenant will not permit any Hazardous Substances to be brought onto the Leased
Premises, except for the Permitted Materials described above, and if so brought or found located
thereon, the same shall be immediately removed, with proper disposal, and all required cleanup
procedures shall be diligently undertaken pursuant to all Environmental Laws. IF AT ANY
TIME DURING OR AFTER THE TERM OF THIS LEASE, THE LEASED PREMISES IS
FOUND TO BE CONTAMINATED BY ANY HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE OR TENANT IS
FOUND TO HAVE BREACHED ANY OF ITS DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS
SECTION, TENANT AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD LANDLORD
HARMLESS FROM ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS, LIABILITIES, COSTS,
EXPENSES, DAMAGES AND OBLIGATIONS OF ANY NATURE (INCLUDING
REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COURT COSTS) ARISING FROM OR AS A
RESULT OF THE USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES BY TENANT OR TENANT’S
PERMITEES, EVEN IF RESULTING FROM OR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE NEGLIGENCE
OF LANDLORD OR FOR WHICH LANDLORD IS STRICTLY LIABLE, EXCEPT TO THE
EXTENT CAUSED BY THE GROSS NEGIIGENCE OR INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT
OF LANDLORD. The foregoing indemnification shall survive the termination or expiration of
this Lease.

(e) Repairs.

(1) Following the Delivery Date, Tenant shall, at its cost, perform all
maintenance and repairs required to keep the Leased Premises in compliance with applicable
law. All maintenance, repairs and replacements shall be immediately performed by Tenant at
Tenant’s sole cost and expense. The maintenance and repair required by this Section shall
include, but shall not be limited to, interior maintenance, regular and timely removal of all litter,
garbage, frash and waste; regular lawn mowing; tree, shrub and plant pruning and trimming;
watering of landscaped areas; weed control; pest control; maintaining exierior lighting and
mechanical facilities in good working order; maintain ADA compliant standards; keeping
parking areas, walks, driveways and roads clean and in good repair; striping of all parking and

-6~
#4538743.6



driveway areas; and the repairing and repainting of the exterior improvements visible to
neighboring properties and/or public view (collectively, the “Maintenance and Repair™), Should
Landlord, in its sole opinion, determine that Tenant has not properly adhered to the Maintenance
and Repair requirements of this Section, Landlord shall deliver written notice of such deficiency
to Tenant. Tenant shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of said deficiency notice to cure the
deficiency to the satisfaction of Landlord. At such time, Landlord will deliver a notice of
compliance and acceptance of the curative matters to Tenant, and there shall be no penalty to
Tenant. If, however, Tenant has not cured said deficiencies after said 30th day, Tenant will pay
Landlord a Maintenance and Repair penalty of Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($500.00) per
day to Landlord, delivered in accordance with Section 12(a). Landlord shall have the right to
cure the deficiency at Tenant’s expense if Tenant fails to cure after the notice and opportunity to
cure period expires. TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT, FROM AND
AFTER THE DELIVERY DATE, LANDLORD HAS NO DUTY OR OBLIGATION OF ANY
KIND TO MAKE ANY REPAIRS OR REPLACEMENTS OR PROVIDE MAINTENANCE
OF ANY KIND TO THE LEASED PREMISES, ANY IMPROVEMENTS THEREON
(INCLUDING ANY OF TENANT’S PERSONAL PROPERTY), OR OTHERWISE
MAINTAIN OR KEEP THE SAME IN GOOD CONDITION. TENANT IS SOLELY LIABLE
FOR SAME.

) Tenant’s Fixtures. Tenant may install in or upon the Leased Premises
such trade fixtures and equipment as Tenant deems desirable and all of said items shall remain
Tenant’s property whether or not affixed or attached to the Leased Premises. Tenant may
remove such items from the Leased Premises at any time, provided that such removal does not
cause material damage to the improvements on the Leased Premises, and in all events Tenant
shall repair any damages caused by such removal.

(2 Tenant Signs.

(1)  Exterior Signs. During the Term of this Lease, to the maximum
extent allowed by the applicable governmental ordinances, Tenant may, at its sole cost and
expense, {(A) place building signage and logos on the improvements to be constructed on the
Leased Premises, and (B} install a monument sign. Any signage not permiited under this Lease
shall be specifically prohibited, and Tenant may only place its name on any sighage and not the
name of any third party.

(2) Maintenance. All signs which Tenant elects to construct or utilize
pursuant to this Section shall be constructed and maintained in good repair at Tenant’s sole cost
and expense, and Tenant shall pay the cost of any electricity consumed in illuminating the same.
Tenant shall submit plans and specifications to Landlord for Landlord’s written approval prior to
fabrication and installation of any monument signs. Tenant, upon vacation of the Premises, or
the removal or alteration of ifs signage for any reason, shall be responsible for the repair,
painting, and/or replacement of the building fascia surface where signs are attached.

(h)  Mechanics’ Liens. Tenant shall have no right or authority to cause or
allow any mechanics’ lien or other monetary lien or claim to encumber Landlord’s fee interest in
the Leased Premises, or any portion thereof. If Tenant causes or allows any such mechanics’ lien
or other monetary lien or claim to be recorded against the Leased Premises, or any portion

-7-
#4538743.6



thereof, Tenant agrees to cause such lien to be released and discharged within thirty (30) days
after Tenant’s notice of same, either by paying such indebtedness or by posting a bond or other
adequate security as shall be required by law to obtain such rclease and discharge. Nothing
herein shall prevent Tenant from contesting the validity thereof so long as such contest is
pursued by Tenant with reasonable diligence and the same is released and discharged by Tenant
as provided above. Landlord shall have no responsibility to Tenant or to any contractor,
subcontractor, supplier, materialman, workman or other person, firm or corporation who shall
engage in or participate in any additions, alterations, changes or replacements thereof unless
Landlord shall expressly undertake such obligation in writing or has expressly authorized the
purchase of materials and/or the employment of workmen in connection therewith in writing. IF
ANY SUCH MECHANICS’ LIEN OR OTHER MONETARY LIEN OR CLAIM IS
RECORDED AGAINST THE LEASED PREMISES, OR ANY PORTION THEREOQF,
TENANT AGREES TO DEFEND, PROTECT, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS
LANDLORD FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS AND DEMANDS, INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT THEREON, AND
ALL COSTS, LOSSES, EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF ANY KIND RELATING
THERETO, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES
AND COSTS OF SUITS, ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM ANY SUCH LIEN.
The foregoing indemnity shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

5. Property Taxes. Tenant acknowledges the Leased Premises has a tax exempt
status with the Kleberg County taxing authorities. At any time during the Term, should Property
Taxes be assessed in any manner, Tenant shall pay at its sole cost and expense any and all sums
due as Property Taxes before the same become delinquent. Tenant shall be entitled to pay any
Property Taxes in installments as and to the extent the same may be permitted by the applicable
taxing authority. Landlord agrees to cooperate with Tenant in secking the delivery of all notices
of Property Taxes to Tenant directly from the applicable taxing authorities. If Tenant owes and
fails to pay Property Taxes, Landlord may pay such taxes at Tenant’s expense.

6. Utilities. Tenant shall pay at its sole cost and expense the sums required to have
connected all utility services to the Leased Premises, including, but not limited to, any and all
utility deposits, tap fees, impact fees and meter fees, plus any and all capital costs related to such
connections. Tenant shall promptly pay all charges for electricity, water, gas, telephone service
and all other utilities furnished to the Leased Premises. Landlord hereby transfers and assigns to
Tenant all rights and entitlements of Landlord attributable to the use, delivery and consumption
of utilifies at the Leased Premises (but not to any other property owned by Landlord). All utilities
shall be constructed underground except for transformers and connection valves. Tenant shall
arrange with the appropriate utility suppliers for services to the Leased Premises, pay all
connection, meter, service and capacity charges and deposits required to connect utilities to the
Leased Premises, and pay such utility suppliers directly for such services, With respect to onsite
drainage or detention improvements, Tenant shall be responsible for obtaining required permits
from governmental agencies having jurisdiction over drainage or detention improvements, and
Tenant shall be responsible for and pay the cost of any design, construction and operation
required by any such onsite drainage or detention improvements in accordance with any such
permits or approvals. Landlord shall not have obligation or provide any onsite or offsiie
drainage or detention improvements. No interruption of utility service shall be construed as

#4538743.60



either a constructive or actual eviction of Tenant, nor relieve Tenant from fulfilling any covenant
or condition of this Lease.

7. Use, Transfers or Assignments.

(a) Tenant’s Use. The Leased Premises shall be used (the “Permitted Use™)
only for a public purpose, including but not limited to, educational (through the Kingsville
Independent School District only), community and govermmental activities such as Tenant’s
intended use as the Kingsville City Hall (“City Hall”), and for no other use or purpose. Tenant
acknowledges that the specification of a “Permitted Use” does not include any representation or
warranty by Landlord as to whether or not the Permitted Use complies with applicable laws
and/or requires special governmental permits. Tenant shall not use the Leased Premiscs for any
use or purpose other than the Permitted Use and any use other than the Permitted Use shall
constitute a prohibited use hereunder, TENANT SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD
LANDLORD HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES,
LIABILITIES, COSTS OR EXPENSES INCURRED BY LANDILORD AS A RESULT OF
THE USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES IN VIOLATION OF THIS LEASE. Tenant shall not
permit any objectionable or unpleasant odors or noises to emanate from the Leased Premises.

(b) Tenants Substantial Completion. Tenant agrees to bear its total cost of
renovating and improving the Leased Premises into a City Hall. However, Landlord and Tenant
acknowledge that Tenant’s design and construction expenses to complete said City Hall shall be
paid by Tenant in an amount not to exceed Two Million Seven Hundred Thousand and No/100
Dollars ($2,700,000.00). Tenants proposed budget in connection with such construction and
substantial completion is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

(c) Landlord Termination Rights. In the event that Tenant closes or leaves
vacant the Leased Premises, or otherwise suspends operation of the City Hall for a continuous
period of 180 days, then, in such event, Landlord shall have the option to terminate this Lease by
providing Tenant with 30 days’ notice (the “Termination Notice™).

(d) Assignment, Subletting.

(1)  Tenant shall not assign, mortgage, pledge, encumber or in any
manner transfer this Lease or any estate or interest therein, or sublet the Leased Premises or any
part thereof, or grant any license, concession or other right to occupy any portion of the Leased
Premises without the prior written consent of Landlord. Consent by Landlord to one or more
assignments, sublettings or other transfers shall not operate as a waiver of Landlord’s rights as to
any subsequent assignments, sublettings or other transfers. Notwithstanding any assignment,
subletting or other transfer, Tenant (meaning the initial Tenant executing this Lease) and any
guarantor of such Tenant’s obligations under this Lease shall at all times remain fully and
primarily responsible and liable for the payment of all Rent and for compliance with all its other
obligations under this Lease (even if future assignments and sublettings occur subsequent to the
assignment or subletting by Tenant, and regardless of whether or not Tenant’s approval has been
obtained for such future assignments and sublettings) for the entire Term and any renewals or
extensions of the Term. Any permitted sublease of all or any part of the Leased Premises must
contain a waiver of claims against Landlord by the subtenant and require the subtenant’s insurer

0.
#4538743.6



to issue waiver of subrogation rights endorsements to all policies of insurance carried in
connection with the Leased Premises or the contents thereof. All waivers shall be in form and
substance acceptable to Landlord. Moreover, in the event that the rent due and payable by a
sublessee (or a combination of the rent payable under such sublease plus any bonus or other
consideration therefor or incident thereto) exceeds the rent payable under this Lease, or if with
respect {o a permitted assignment, permitted license or other transfer by Tenant permitted by
Landlord, the consideration payable to Tenant by the assignee, licensee or other transferee
exceeds the rent payable under this Lease, then Tenant is bound and obligated to pay Landlord
all such excess rent and other excess consideration within ten (10) days following receipt thereof
by Tenant from such sublessee, assignee, licensee or other transferee, as the case may be.

(2)  Tenant shall give Landlord at least thirty (30) days advance written
notice of any proposed assignment or subletting, such notice to be accompanied by a copy of the
proposed sublease or assignment agreement setting forth all terms of such agreement. Landlord
shall have the right to terminate this Lease effective as of the proposed effective date of the
assignment or subletting by giving Tenant written notice thereof within fifteen (15) days after
Landlord’s receipt of said notice from Tenant. Should Landlord not elect to so terminate this
Lease in connection with any proposed subletting or assignment, Landlord shall continue to have
the right to disapprove same.

(c) Landlord Right of Access. Landlord and its agents and representatives
shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at all reasonable times for any of the
following purposes: (1) to determine whether the Leased Premises are in good condition and
whether Tenant is complying with its obligations under this Lease; or (2) to exercise its remedies
following an Event of Default.

8. Indemnification, Insurance.

(a) Indemnification.

(1) Landlord shall indemnify and hold harmless Tenant and its agents,
successors and assigns, from and against all injury, loss, claims or damage, arising from, related
to, or in connection with, Landlord’s use, occupancy, construction or repair of the Leased
Premises prior to the Delivery Date; except injury, loss, claims or damage caused primarily by
Tenant’s or its Permitees or the negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant.

(2) TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT, FROM
AND AFTER THE DELIVERY DATE, LANDLORD, ITS PARTNERS, OFFICERS,
DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, LENDERS, ATTORNEYS, AGENTS,
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, HAVE NO DUTY OR OBLIGATION OF ANY KIND, AND
TENANT HEREBY RELEASES LANDLORD AND ITS PARTNERS, OFFICERS,
DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, LENDERS, ATTORNEYS, AGENTS,
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNIFIED PARTIES”, AND
INDIVIDUALLY, AN “INDEMNIFIED PARTY”) FROM, AND AGREES THAT, EXCEPT
AS SET FORTH IN SUBSECTION (1) ABOVE, TENANT SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY
AND HOLD HARMLESS THE INDEMNIFIED PARTIES FROM AND AGAINST, ANY
AND ALL CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, PROCEEDINGS, ACTIONS, JUDGMENTS, LIENS,

-10-
#4538743.6



DEMANDS, LIABILITIES (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION FOR INDEMNIFIED
PARTIES’ OWN NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY AND STATUTORY STRICT
LIABILITY WHETHER ACTIVE, PASSIVE, SOLE, JOINT, CONTRIBUTORY,
CONCURRENT OR COMPARATIVE), DAMAGES (INCLUDING THOSE RESULTING IN
THE ORDINARY COURSE OF EVENTS), FINES, PENALTIES, LOSSES, COSTS AND
EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’
AND OTHER ADVISORS® FEES) AND AMOUNTS PAID IN SETTLEMENT
(COLLECTIVELY, “CLAIMS”) OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER, WHETHER
CONTINGENT OR ACCRUED, ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION WITH OR IN ANY
WAY RELATING TO ANY BREACH, DEFAULT, VIOLATION OR NON PERFORMANCE
ON THE PART OF TENANT IN THE PERFORMANCE OF ANY TERM, PROVISION,
COVENANT, AGREEMENT OR CONDITION ON THE PART OF TENANT TO BE
PERFORMED PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE, OR (C) INJURY OR
DAMAGE TO PERSON OR PROPERTY TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY SUCH DAMAGE
OR INJURY MAY HAVE OCCURRED ON THE LEASED PREMISES OR BE INCIDENT
TO, ARISE OUT OF, OR BE CAUSED, EITHER PROXIMATELY OR REMOTELY,
WHOLLY OR IN PART, BY ANY ACT, OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE OR MISCONDUCT ON
THE PART OF TENANT OR ANY OF TENANT’S PERMITTEES OR WHEN ANY SUCH
INJURY OR DAMAGE IS THE RESULT OF THE VIOLATION BY TENANT, OR ANY OF
TENANT’S PERMITTEES OF ANY LAW, ORDINANCE OR GOVERNMENTAL ORDER
OF ANY KIND OR WHEN ANY SUCH INJURY OR DAMAGE MAY IN ANY OTHER
WAY ARISE FROM OR OUT OF THE OCCUPANCY OR USE BY TENANT OF THE
PREMISES. THE INDEMNITY AND RELEASE SET FORTH ABOVE SHALL APPLY
REGARDLESS OF CAUSATION, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, AN
INDEMNIFIED PARTY’S ACTS, OMISSIONS OR NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER SUCH
NEGLIGENCE IS ACTIVE, PASSIVE, SOLE, JOINT, COMPARATIVE, CONTRIBUTORY
OR CONCURRENT), OR BASED ON ANY THEORY OF PREMISES LIABILITY
(WHETHER FOUNDED IN WHOLE OR IN PART ON NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT
LIABILITY), OR ANY THEORY OF STRICT LIABILITY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ANY THEORIES OF PRODUCTS LIABILITY; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
THERE IS EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED FROM THE FOREGOING RELEASE AND
INDEMNITY THAT PERCENTAGE OF A LOSS DETERMINED BY FINAL JUDGMENT
OF A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE
GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF AN INDEMNIFIED PARTY.

3 TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT, FROM
AND AFTER THE DELIVERY DATE, LANDLORD HAS NO DUTY OR OBLIGATION OF
ANY KIND MAKE ANY REPAIRS OR REPLACEMENTS OR PROVIDE MAINTENANCE
OF ANY KIND TO THE LEASED PREMISES, ANY IMPROVEMENTS THEREON.

(4)  This Section 7(a) shall survive the expiration or earlier termination
of this Lease.

(b} Insurance. Tenant shall procure and maintain throughout the Term, at its
sole cost and expense, the following insurance policies covering the Leased Premises in at least
the following amounts.

-11-
#4538743.6



-~ TYPE OF COVERAGE .

LIMITS & COMMENTS =~

PROPERTY INSURANCE

“Special Causes of Loss™ or similar “All Risk™ form,
including flood, wind, earthquake and terrorism
coverage, covering all improvements on, in or about
the Premises and the personal property of Tenant
located upon, in or about the Leased Premises
including, without limitation, Tenant’s stock in trade,
fixtures, furniture, furnishings, removable floor
coverings, trade equipment, and signs, which shall
include endorsements for contingent liability from
“demolition costs and increased cost of construction,”
in each case (i) in an amount equal to 100% of the
full replacement cost with a waiver of depreciation;
(i) containing an agreed amount endorsement with
respect to all improvements waiving all co-insurance
provisions; (iii) providing for no deductible in excess
of $10,000.00 for all such insurance coverage except
Flood and Earthquake coverage where the deductible

{ shall not exceed $25,000.00; and (iv) containing

“ordinance or law” coverage if any of the

improvements or the use of the Leased Premises shall

at any time constitute legal non-conforming
improvements or uses. Tenant will also provide
insurance for Loss of Business Income, including
Rent payable under the terms of this Lease, for a
period of not less than 12 months. Landlord (and any
mortgagee designated by Landlord) shall be named
loss payee. Said policy shall contain an endorsement
providing Tenant’s insurance is primary and non-
contributory in the event of any overlapping coverage
with any insurance Landlord may carry.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY with a combined single
limit for Bodily Injury and
Property Damage

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence and $2,000,000 General
Aggregate specific to this location

s PERSONAL INJURY
LIABILITY

$2,000,000 Each Occurrence

¢ PRODUCTS AND
COMPLETED OPERATIONS

$2,000,000 Aggrepate

o CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY

$1,000,000

#4538743.6

-12-




_ TYPEOFCOVERAGE - | LIvITS & COMMENTS

e INDEPENDENT $1,000,000
CONTRACTORS LIABILITY

e PREMISES DAMAGE LEGAL | $100,000
LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (for all | $500,000 Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury
vehicles owned, non-owned, | and Property Damage

hired or otherwise used in
connection with business
operations on or from the
Premises)

BOILER & MACHINERY | $500,000

INSURANCE (if applicable)

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION Statutory Limits

INSURANCE

EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY $1,000,000 per accident, $1,000,000 per discase per
INSURANCE

employee and $1,000,000 for disease aggregate (or
whatever limits are required as underlying insurance
for the Umbrella or Excess Liability) in respect of
any work or operations on or about the Leased
Premises

The parties shall reevaluate the above insurance requirements from time-to-time during
the Term, and Tenant shall update the insurance it so carries, to ensure that at all times during the
Term, Tenant shall maintain such insurance as is market at such time. Any deductible amounts
under any insurance policies required to be carried by Tenant hereunder shall not exceed
$10,000.00 except Flood and Earthquake coverage where the deductible shall not exceed
$25,000.00. All insurance policies required to be provided and maintained by Tenant under this
Lease shall be in accordance with Landlord’s instructions for an additional endorsement as
identified in Section 4(c)(4)A of this Lease. Tenant shall obtain a written obligation on the part
of each insurance company that no policy shall be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in
coverage or in limits except after at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notification to Landlord.
A copy of each policy and all endorsements required hercunder shall be delivered to Landlord on
the Delivery Date and annually thereafter at least thirty (30) days prior to the policy expiration
date. Tenant’s failure to comply with the foregoing requirements relating to insurance shall
constitute an Event of Default hereunder. In addition to the remedies provided for in this Lease,
if Tenant fails to carry the insurance required hereunder, Landlord may, but is not obligated to,
obtain such insurance and Tenant shall pay to Landlord upon demand as additional rental the
premium cost thereof plus interest thereon at the rate equal to the lesser of the highest rate
permitted by law or cighteen percent (18%) per annum from the date of payment by Landlord

13-
#4538743.6



until repaid by Tenant. NEITHER THE ISSUANCE OF ANY INSURANCE POLICY
REQUIRED HEREUNDER NOR THE MINIMUM LIMITS SPECIFIED HEREIN WITH
RESPECT TO TENANT’S INSURANCE COVERAGE SHALL BE DEEMED TO LIMIT OR
RESTRICT IN ANY WAY TENANT’S LIABILITY ARISING UNDER OR OUT OF THIS
LEASE. Landlord may require additional coverages as may be required by any lender or upon
thirty (30) days prior written notice to Tenant.

All polices of insurance to be maintained by Tenant hereunder may be maintained by way
of “blanket policies” insuring the Leased Premises and other premises and/or property owned or
operated by Tenant or its affiliates, and shall be subject to such self-insured retention as may be
included in Tenant’s policies.

(c) Waiver of Subrogation. Each of Landlord and Tenant hereby waives and
releases any and every right or cause of action against the other that arises during the Term of
this Lease or any extension or renewal thereof for any and all loss of, or damage to, any of its
property (whether or not such loss or damage is caused by the fault or the sole or contributory
negligence of the other party or anyone for whom said other party may be responsible) to the
extent such loss or damage would be covered by any insurance policy that such party is required
to maintain under this Lease (whether or not such policy is actually maintained by such party),
and the party incurring such loss or damage agrees to look solely to the proceeds, if any, which
are recoverable {or would have been recoverable had such policy actually been maintained by
such party) under said policy. Said waivers shall be in addition to, and not in limitation or
derogation of, any other waiver, release or indemnity obligation contained in this Lease with
respect to any loss or damage to property of the parties hereto. Written notice of the terms of
said mutual waivers shall be given to each insurance carrier and said insurance policies shall be
properly endorsed, if necessary, to prevent the invalidation of said insurance coverages by reason
of said waivers. Each party agrees to include such an endorsement in the insurance policies
which it is required to maintain hereunder so long as the same is obtainable and is includable
without extra cost, or if extra cost is chargeable therefor, such party will so advise the other party
and the amount of such extra cost in‘which event the other party may at its election pay the same
. but shall not be obligated to do so.

9. Destruction, Condemnation.

{a)  Destruction,

(1) Restoration. If any Tenant’s Improvements on the Leased
Premises are damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualiy, Tenant shall give immediate written
notice thereof to Landlord and Tenant shall, except as hereinafter provided, at Tenant’s sole cost
and expense (but with the use of all insurance proceeds available from insurance policies carried
by Tenant as required under this Lease), proceed with reasonable diligence (but not later than
sixty (60) days after such casualty) to rebuild and repair such Tenant’s Improvements to
substantially the condition in which they existed prior to such damage or destruction, with such
reasonable changes as may be agreed to between Landlord and Tenant. Landlord shall not be
obligated to agree to any changes which will, in its reasonable discretion, reduce the value of the
Leased Premises. All restoration work performed pursuant to this Section shall be done in a
good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Lease

-14-
#4538743.6



regarding construction. Subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, Landlord will make
available to Tenant for the restoration work as the same progresses the net proceeds paid to
Landlord as a loss payee under any property insurance policy maintained by Tenant pursuant to
this Lease. Payments will be made monthly against properly certified vouchers of an architect
who is reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, in charge of the restoration work, and on such other
conditions as Landlord may reasonably require. Landlord, however, may withhold from each
payment ten percent (10%) of such requested payment until thirty (30) days after the restoration
work is completed and proof has been furnished to Landlord that no lien or liability has attached
or will attach to the Leased Premises or the Landlord in connection with such work. The Rent
payable hereunder shall in no event abate by reason of damage or destruction.

(2)  Termination. Notwithstanding subsection (1) above, if damage or
destruction to the Tenant’s Improvements located on the Leased Premises occurs during the
twenty-four (24) months preceding the expiration of the Term and more than fifty percent (50%)
of the replacement value of the City Hall is destroyed, then either Landlord or Tenant shall be
permitied to terminate this Lease by written notice given to the other within thirty (30) days after
the occurrence of such casualty. If this Lease is terminated pursuant hereto, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord, as a condition to termination of this Lease, the amount of any deductible relating to the
property insurance carried by Tenant and all insurance proceeds relating to such casualty shall be
paid to and retained by Landlord except for the portion received by reason of, and expressly
apportioned by such insurance carrier to, the loss of any trade fixtures that Tenant would be
permitted to remove at the end of the Term. If Tenant fails to maintain property insurance as
required by this Lease then, as a condition to any termination of this Lease pursuant to the
provisions hereof, Tenant shall pay to Landlord one hundred percent (100%) of the full
replacement value, less foundations, of all Tenant’s Improvements located on the Leased
Premises as of the date of such fire or other casualty. The covenant contained in this Section
shall expressly survive any cancellation or termination of this Lease.

(b) Condemnation.

(1) Taking of Parking or Access. Not including the existing parking
and access easement, if the whole or such a functionally substantial part of the Leased Premises
(meaning at least twenty-five (25%)) of the floor areca in the Tenant’s Improvements or such
portion of the parking area within the Leased Premises as to render the Leased Premises unable
to comply with laws, regulations or ordinances govemning parking requirements for the Permitted
Use) is taken for any public or quasi-public use under governmental law, ordinance or regulation,
or by right of eminent domain, or by private purchase in lieu thereof (collectively referred to
herein as a “Condemnation”) and the taking substantially prevents the use of the Leased
Premises for the purposes contemplated hereunder, then either Landlord or Tenant shall be
permitted, upon written notice given to the other party no later than thirty (30) days after the date
physical possession is taken by the condemning authority, to terminate this Lease. In the event
of such termination, upon payment by Tenant of all Rent and other sums then due and payable
hereunder, this Lease shall terminate effective as of the date physical possession is taken by the
condemning authority, except with respect to outstanding obligations and liabilities of Tenant
hereunder, actual or contingent, which have arisen on or prior to such termination date.

-15-
#4538743.6



(2)  Restoration. If a Condemnation of the Leased Premises or any part
thereof shall occur and this Lease is not terminated as provided in subsection (1) above, then this
Lease shall continue in full force and effect. Any Net Proceeds (as defined in subsection
(3) below) payable with respect to such Condemnation shall be allocated between Landlord and
Tenant in accordance with subsection (4) below and Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense,
promptly repair and restore the Leased Premises to the same condition (as nearly as practicable)
as existed immediately before the Condemnation. Such portion of the Net Proceeds payable to
Tenant shall be held by Tenant in trust for the purpose of restoration and repair of the Leased
Premises.

3) Proceedings. Each of Landlord and Tenant may appear in any
Condemnation proceeding or action to negotiate, prosecute and adjust any claim for any award
or compensation on account of any Condemnation as it relates to their respective interest in the
Leased Premises. All amounts paid in connection with any Condemnation of the Premises shall
be allocated pursuant to subsection (4) below, and all such amounts (minus the expense of
collecting such amounts as hereinafter provided) are herein called the “Net Proceeds.” Landlord
and Tenant shall each pay their respective costs and expenses in connection with each such
proceeding, action, negotiation, prosecution and adjustment for which costs and expenses
Landlord and Tenant shall be reimbursed out of any award, compensation or insurance payment
to which it is entitled.

(4)  Inthe event of any Condemnation, Landlord and Tenant agree that
any award or compensation on account thereof will be allocated as follows:

A. If this Lease terminates under the circumstances provided
in subsection (1} above, (i} Tenant shall be entitled to receive that portion of the
award or compensation allocable to the value of the Tenant’s Improvements taken
in such Condemnation calculated by multiplying the award for the value of such
mprovements by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of months

which would have elapsed from the date of such Condemnation to the date on -

which the Term (including any then exercised renewal options) would have
terminated absent such Condemnation, and the denominator of which is the total
number of months which would have elapsed from the Delivery Date to the date
on which the Term (including any then cxercised renewal options) would have
terminated absent such Condemnation, together with any award for loss of
business, loss of profits, and moving expenses; and (ii) Landlord shall be entitled
to receive that portion of the award or compensation allocable to (a) the value of
that portion of the land area of the Leased Premises taken, (b) the value of the
Tenant’s Improvements, and other improvements located on the Leased Premises
taken in such Condemnation, subject to Tenant’s right to receive that portion of
the award as provided in clause (i), and (c) such portion of such award or awards,
if any, paid by the condemning authority as shall represent consequential
damages, if any, to the portion of the Leased Premises not so taken. Landlord
shall additionally be entitled to any amount of the award or compensation
remaining following allocation as set forth in this subsection. Under no
citcumstances shall Tenant be entitled to any award or compensation for the value
of the unexpired term of this Lease or for the value of the leaschold estate.

-16-
#4538743.6



B. If this Lease does not terminate under the circumstances
provided in subsection (1) above and Tenant restores the Premises as required by
subsection (2), (i) Tenant shall be entitled to receive the award or compensation
allocable to the value of the Tenant’s Improvements taken in such Condemnation,
together with any award for loss of business and loss of profits; and (ii) Landlord
shall be entitled to receive that portion of the award or compensation allocable to
the value of that portion of the land area of the Leased Premises taken, and such
portion of such award or awards, if any, paid by the condemning authority as shall
represent consequential damages, if any, to the portion of the Leased Premises not
so taken. Landlord shall additionally be entifled to any amount of the award or
compensation remaining following allocation as set forth in this subsection.
Under no circumstances shall Tenant be entitled to any award or compensation for
the value of the unexpired term of this Lease or for the value of the leasehold
estate,

10. Default.

(a) Events of Default. The following are events of default (“Events of
Default”):

(1) Non-Monetary Obligations. Either party fails to perform any
obligation, covenant or condition or to comply with any provisions of the Lease and such failure
continues for thirty (30) days after written notice from the nondefaulting party, unless said
default requires more than thirty (30} days to cure and the defaulting party commences a cure
within thirty (30) days after written notice and thereafter maintains a diligent effort to complete
the cure and actually completes same within sixty (60) days after Landlord’s initial notice.

(2)  Unable to Pay Debts. Tenant shall generally not pay its debts as
they become due or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts, or shall make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors; or Tenant shall commence any case, proceeding or other
action seeking to have an order for relief entered on its behalf as debtor or to adjudicate it a
bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjusiment, liquidation,
dissolution or composition of it or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization or relief of debtors, or seeking appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or
other similar official for it or for all or any substantial part of its property; or Tenant or any
guarantor shall take any corporate action to authorize, or in contemplation of, any of the actions
set forth above in this subsection.

(3)  Bankruptcy. A case, proceeding or other action is brought against
the Tenant or any guarantor seeking to have an order for relief entered against it as debtor or to
have it adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment,
liquidation, dissolution or composition of it or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization or relief of debtors, or seeking appeintment of a receiver, trustee,
custodian or other similar official for it or for all or any substantial part of its property, and such
case, proceeding or other action (i) results in the entry of an order for relief against it which is
not fully stayed within seven (7) business days after the entry thereof, or (ii) shall remain
undismissed for a period of thirty (30) days.

-17-
#4538743.6



{4 Other. Any other failure or default of Tenant which pursuant to
any other provision of this Lease is an event of default; including, but not limited to, failure to
maintain, failure to insure, and failure to pay taxes.

(b) Landlord’s Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by
Tenant, Landlord shall have one or more of the following remedies:

(1) Termination. Terminate this Lease in which event Tenant shall
immediately surrender the Leased Premises to Landlord, and if Tenant fails to do so, Landlord
may, without prejudice to any other remedy which Landlord may have for possession or
arrearages in rental, enter upon and take possession of the Leased Premises and expel or remove
Tenant and any other person who may be occupying said Premises or any part thereof, without
being liable for prosecution or any claim of damages therefor. If Landlord elects to terminate
this Lease by reason of an Event of Default, then notwithstanding such termination, Tenant shall
be liable for and shall pay to Landlord the sum of all Rent payable to Landlord pursuant to the
terms of this Lease which has accrued to date of such termination, plus, as liquidated and agreed
final damages, an amount equal to all Rent which would have otherwise been payable hereunder
for the remaining portion of the Term (had such Term not been terminated by Landlord), minus
the fair rental value of the Leased Premises for the same period both discounted to present worth
at an annual interest factor of four percent (4%). Notwithstanding anything stated herein to the
contrary, if Landlord elects the foregoing remedy, Landlord shall have no duty to mitigate
damages as mitigation is built into the foregoing measure of damages.

(2) Re-Entry. Enter upon and take possession of the Leased Premises
and expel and permanently exclude Tenant and any other person who may be occupying said
Leased Premises or any part thereof, without being liable for prosecution or any claim for
damages therefor with or without having terminated this Lease. Landlord may, if it so elects,
relet the Premises on Landlord’s terms and receive the rent therefor; and Tenant agrees to pay to
Landlord, on demand, any deficiency that may arise by reason of such reletting for the remainder
of the Term. If Landlord elects to repossess the Leased Premises without terminating this Lease,
then Tenant shall be liable for and shall pay to Landlord all Rent payable to Landlord pursuant to
the terms of this Lease which has accrued to the date of such repossession, plus all Rent required
to be paid by Tenant to Landlord during the remainder of the Term until the date of expiration of
the Term, diminished by any net sums thereafter actually received by Landlord through reletting
the Premises during said period (after deducting reasonable expenses incurred by Landlord in
reletting same). In no event shall Tenant be entitled to any excess of any rental obtained by
reletting over and above the rental herein reserved. Actions to collect amounts due by Tenant to
Landlord as provided in this subsection may be brought from time to time, on one or more
occasions, without the necessity of Landlord’s waiting until expiration of the Term.

(3) Other. Without terminating this Lease, enter upon the Premises,
by force if necessary (except to the extent prohibited by Texas law), and without being guilty in
any manner of trespass or otherwise and without liability for any damage to Tenant or persons
holding under Tenant by reason of such reentry, all of which are hereby expressly waived, and
do or perform whatever Tenant is obligated hereunder to do or perform under the terms of this
Lease. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord on demand for any expenses or other sums which
Landlord may incur or expend, plus ten percent (10%) thereof to cover Landlord’s overhead and

-18-
#4538743.6



administrative costs in taking such action, and any interest rate required under this Lease.
Nothing in this subsection shall be deemed an obligation or undertaking by Landlord to remedy
any such defaults of Tenant.

4 Change Locks. Alter all locks and other security devices at the
Leased Premises with or without terminating this Lease. Landlord shall not be obligated to
provide a key or other means of ingress to Tenant or Tenant’s agents or to provide re-entry for
any reason or under any circumstances whatsoever, This Lease supersedes Section 93.002 of the
Texas Property Code to the extent of any conflict.

%) Dominion. Exercise by Landlord of any one or more remedies
hereunder granted or otherwise available shall not be deemed to be an acceptance of surrender of
the Leased Premises by Tenanf, whether by agreement or by operation of law, it being
understood that such surrender can be effected only by the written agreement of Landlord and
Tenant. No such alteration of locks or other security devices and no removal or other exercise of
dominion by Landlord over the property of Tenant or others at the Leased Premises shall be
deemed unauthorized or constitute a conversion, Tenant hereby consenting, after any event of
default, to the aforesaid exercise of dominion over Tenant’s property within the Leased
Premises. All claims for damages by reason of such re-entry and/or repossession and/or
alteration of locks or other security devices are hereby waived, as are all claims for damages by
reason of any distress warrant, forcible detainer proceedings, sequestration proceedings or other
legal process. Tenant agrees that any re-entry by Landlord may be pursuant to judgment
obtained in forcible detainer proceedings or other legal proceedings or without the necessity for
any legal proceedings, as Landlord may elect, and Landlord shall not be liable in trespass or
otherwise.

(6) Landlord’s Costs and Expenses. In case of any Event of Default,
Tenant shall also be liable for and shall pay to Landlord, in addition to any sum provided to be
paid above, broker’s fees incurred by Landlord in connection with reletting the whole or any part
of the Leased Premises; the costs of removing and storing Tenant’s or other occupant’s property;
the cost of repairing, altering, remodeling or otherwise putting the Leased Premises into
condition acceptable to a new tenant or tenants; and all reasonable expenses incurred by
Landlord in enforcing or defending Landlord’s rights and/or remedies including reasonable
attorneys’ fees.

(7)  Repossession. Landlord shall also have the right to remove from
the Leased Premises (without the necessity of obtaining a distress warrant, writ of sequestration
or other legal process and without being liable for prosecution or any claim for damages
therefor) all or any portion of such furniture, fixtures, equipment and other property and place
same in storage; AND IN SUCH EVENT, TENANT SHALL BE LIABLE TO LANDLORD
FOR COSTS INCURRED BY LANDLORD IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH REMOVAL
AND STORAGE AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD LANDLORD HARMLESS FROM
ALL LOSS, DAMAGE, COST, EXPENSE AND LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH
REMOVAL AND STORAGE. Landlord shall also have the right to relinquish possession of all
or any portion of such furniture, fixtures, equipment and other property to any person
(“Claimant”) claiming fo be entitled to possession thereof who presents to Landlord a copy of
any instrument represented to Landlord by Claimant to have been executed by Tenant (or any

-19-
#4538743.6



predecessor of Tenant) granting Claimant the right under various circumstances to take
possession of such furniture, fixtures, equipment or other property, without the necessity on the
part of Landlord to inquire into the authenticity of said instrument and without the necessity of
Landlord’s making any nature of investigation or inquiry as to the validity of the factual or legal
basis upon which Claimant purports to act; AND TENANT AGREES TO INDEMNIFY,
DEFEND AND HOLD LANDLORD HARMLESS FROM ALL COST, EXPENSE, LOSS,
DAMAGE AND LIABILITY INCIDENT TO LANDLORD’S RELINQUISHMENT OF
POSSESSION OF ALL OR ANY PORTION OF SUCH FURNITURE, FIXTURES,
EQUIPMENT OR OTHER PROPERTY TO CLAIMANT.

(8)  Remedies Cwmulative. No remedy herein conferred upon or
reserved to Landlord shall exclude any other remedy herein or by law provided, but each shall be
cumulative and in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at
law or in equity or by statute.

11.  Tenant’s Property. All furniture, trade fixtures, inventory, stock-in-trade,
personal property, and related equipment installed by Tenant in the Leased Premises (“Tenant’s
Property”) shall be and remain the property of Tenant throughout the Term of this Lease. The
furniture, trade fixtures, inventory, stock-in-trade and related equipment installed by Tenant in
the Leased Premises shall also be and remain the property of Tenant upon termination of this
Lease. At Tenant’s request, Landlord shall execute such reasonable documents as Tenant may
request waiving any rights or claims of Landlord to such property of Tenant.

12, General Provisions.

(a) Notice. “Notice” shall mean any notice, notification, consent, approval,
request, designation, submission, specification, election or other communication required or
permitted under this Lease. All Notices shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
given and received the earlier of (i) the date the notice is delivered by one party to the other party
personally or delivered to the party’s address by a party or by a delivery service which records
delivery dates, or (ii) three (3) days after the notice is placed in the mail addressed to the other
party at the party’s address, properly stamped, certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested. A party’s address shall be as follows or as set forth in a notice to the other party:

Landlord: King High Historical Foundation
Attn: Joe Henkel
c/o Kleberg Bank
100 Kleberg St.
Kingsville, Texas 78364
Telephone: 361-595-2950
Fax: 361-593-1510

-20-
#4538743.6



WITH COPY TO: Bracewell & Giuliani LLP
Attn: Jane H. Macon
300 Convent St., Suite 1500
San Antonio, Texas 78205
Telephone: 210-299-3517
Fax: 800-404-3970

[AND]

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP
Attn: Blakely L. Fernandez
300 Convent St., Suite 1500
San Antonio, Texas 78205
Telephone: 210-299-3410
Fax: 800-404-3970

Tenant: The City of Kingsville
Attn: City Manager
P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, Texas 78364
Telephone: 361-595-8002
Fax: 361-595-8024

WITH COPY TO: The City of Kingsville
Attn: City Attorney
P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, Texas 78364
Telephone: 361-505-8016
Fax: 361-592-4696

(b)  Entire Agreement. This Leasc embodies the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties as to the Leased Premises and supersedes all prior
negotiations, agreements and understandings. Any provision of this Lease may be modified,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the party against which
enforcement of such modification, waiver or discharge is sought.

(©) Commission. Tenant and Landlord hereby represent to each other that
neither has entered into any agreement or understanding that would give rise to a real estate
commission being owed in connection with this Lease, and each of Landlord and Tenant shall
indemnify and hold the other harmless against any commission, payment, interest or
participation claimed on account of this Lease with any party under any alleged agreement or
understanding entered into on that party’s behalf with the person or entity claiming the
commission, payment, interest or participation.

(d) Force Majeure. Each party shall be excused from performing an
obligation or undertaking provided for in this Lease for so long as such performance is
prevented, delayed, retarded or hindered by an Act of God, fire, carthquake, flood, explosion,

21-
#4538743.6



action of the elements, war, invasion, insurrection, riot, mob violence, sabotage, strike, lockout,
action of labor unions, requisitions, laws, or orders of government or civil or military authorities;
provided, however no such event shall delay, excuse or postpone the payment of Rent by Tenant
hereunder or any other monetary obligation of Tenant.

{(c) Surrender. Upon the expiration of the Term or earlier termination of this
Lease, Tenant shall surrender the Leased Premises to Landlord. Tenant may remove Tenant’s
Property installed by Tenant, including, but not limited to, all trade fixtures, inventory, stock-in-
trade, furniture and other personal property which are not fixtures. All other installations or
improvements, including all Utility Facilities, HVAC equipment, paneling, dccorating,
partitions, railings, mezzanine floors, and galleries made by either party shall be and become
upon installation the property of Landlord and shall be surrendered with the Leased Premises at
the expiration or termination unless Landlord notifies Tenant to the contrary, in which event
Tenant may remove such property at its expense. Any property not promptly removed by Tenant
under the provisions of this subsection may, at Landlord’s option, be deemed to have been
abandoned by Tenant and may be retained by Landlord without any claim by Tenant.

() Holding Over. If Tenant does not surrender possession of the Leased
Premises upon the expiration of the Term or earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall be
deemed to be occupying the Leased Premises as a tenant at sufferance at a Rent equal to 150% of
the Rent applicable hereunder during the last month of the Term and otherwise subject to all the
conditions, provisions and obligations of this Lease insofar as the same are applicable to a
tenancy at sufferance. ADDITIONALLY, TENANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS LANDLORD FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION,
COSTS, LOSSES, DAMAGES AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEYS FEES AND
COURT COSTS) INCURRED BY LANDLORD AS A RESULT OF SUCH HOLDOVER
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE LOSS OF
ANY PROPOSED SUBSEQUENT TENANT FOR ANY PORTION OF THE LEASED
PREMISES. Nothing herein constitutes Landlord’s consent for Tenant to holdover in the
Premises after the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease. The provisions of this Section
shall survive the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease.

()  No Security Obligation. TENANT SPECIFICALLY ACKNOWLEDGES
THAT LANDLORD HAS NO DUTY TO PROVIDE SECURITY FOR ANY PORTION OF
THE LEASED PREMISES, AND TENANT HAS ASSUMED SOLE RESPONSIBILITY AND
LIABILITY FOR THE SECURITY OF ITSELF, ITS PARTNERS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS,
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, CONTRACTORS, CUSTOMERS, VISITORS, INVITEES,
LICENSEES, SUBTENANTS AND CONCESSIONAIRES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
PROPERTY, IN, ON OR ABOUT THE LEASED PREMISES.

(h) WAIVER OF WARRANTIES AND ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITION.
TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET
FORTH IN THIS LEASE, NEITHER LANDLORD NOR ANY EMPLOYEE OR AGENT OF
LANDLORD HAS MADE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EITHER EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE LEASED PREMISES AND THAT THIS LEASE CONSTITUTES
THE FULL AND FINAL AGREEMENT OF LANDLORD AND TENANT WITH RESPECT
TO THE LEASE OF THE LEASED PREMISES BY TENANT. TENANT HEREBY WAIVES

27-
#4538743.6



ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON ANY WARRANTIES, EITHER
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO HABITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY, SUITABILITY,
QUALITY, CONDITION OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH
REGARD TO THE LEASED PREMISES. TENANT’S TAKING POSSESSION OF THE
LEASED PREMISES SHALL BE CONCLUSIVE EVIDENCE THAT (1) TENANT HAS
INSPECTED (OR HAS CAUSED TO BE INSPECTED) THE LEASED PREMISES,
(2) TENANT ACCEPTS THE LEASED PREMISES AS BEING IN GOOD AND
SATISFACTORY CONDITION AND SUITABLE FOR TENANT’S PURPOSES, AND
(3) THE LEASED PREMISES FULLY COMPLIES WITH LANDLORD’S COVENANTS
AND OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER.

@ DTPA WAIVER. TENANT WAIVES ITS RIGHTS UNDER THE
DECEPTIVE TRADE PRACTICES — CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT, SECTION 17.41,
ET. SEQ., BUSINESS CODE, A LAW THAT GIVES CONSUMERS SPECIAL RIGHTS AND
PROTECTIONS. AFTER CONSULTATION WITH AN ATTORNEY OF TENANT’S OWN
SELECTION, TENANT VOLUNTARILY CONSENTS TO THIS WAIVER.

G) WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY. TENANT, AND ALL OF
TENANT’S SUCCESSORS, SUBTENANTS, AND ASSIGNEES, AND LANDLORD EACH:
(1) AGREE NOT TO ELECT A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO ANY ISSUE
ARISING OUT OF, OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH, THIS LEASE, THE
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN LANDLORD AND TENANT, OR TENANT’S USE OR
OCCUPANCY OF THE PREMISES; AND (2) WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY
WITH RESPECT TO SUCH ISSUE TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY SUCH RIGHT EXISTS
NOW OR IN THE FUTURE. THIS WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IS
SEPARATELY GIVEN BY EACH PARTY, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WITH
THE BENEFIT OF COMPETENT LEGAIL COUNSEL.

(k)  Limitation of Landlord’s Liability. @—TENANT AGREES THAT IF
TENANT -SHALL HAVE ANY CLAIM AGAINST LANDLORD UNDER THIS LEASE
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS
LEASE, TENANT’S SOLE RECOURSE SHALL BE AGAINST LANDLORD’S INTEREST
IN THE LEASED PREMISES FOR THE SATISFACTION OF ANY CLAIM, JUDGMENT
OR DECREE REQUIRING THE PAYMENT OF MONEY BY LANDLORD AS A RESULT
OF A BREACH HEREOF OR OTHERWISE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE, AND
NO OTHER PROPERTY OR ASSETS OF LANDLORD OR THEIR SUCCESSORS OR
ASSIGNS, SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE LEVY, EXECUTION OR OTHER
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE FOR THE SATISFACTION OF ANY SUCH CLAIM,
JUDGMENT, INJUNCTION OR DECREE, TENANT HEREBY WAIVES
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY AND SIMILAR DAMAGES
AGAINST LANDLORD,

1) Applicable Law, Construction. The laws of the State of Texas shall
govern the wvalidity, performance and enforcement of this Lease. The invalidity or
unenforceability of any provision of this Lease shall not affect or impair any other provision. If
any provision of this Lease is capable of two constructions, one of which would render the
provision invalid and the other of which would make the provision valid, the provision shall have

3.
#4538743.6



the meaning which renders it valid. The submission of this document for examination does not
constitute an offer to lease, this document being effective only upon execution and delivery by
Landlord, Tenant and any guarantors.

{m) Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to each
provision, term and covenant of this Lease.

(n) Captions. The captions are for convenience and do not limit or define the
provisions of this Lease.

(0) Gender, Number. Whenever the sense of this Lease requires it, the use of
(1) singular number shall be deemed to include the plural, (2) the masculine gender shall be
deemed to include the feminine or neuter gender, and (3) the neuter gender shall be deemed to
include the masculine and feminine gender.

()  Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one instrument.

(q)  Binding Effect. This Lease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns.

[Signature Page Follows]

24
#4538743.6



EXECUTED this day of , 201

#4538743.6

LANDLORD:

KING HIGH HISTORICAL FOUNDATION,
a Texas Non-Profit Corporation

By:

Name:

Title:

TENANT:

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
a Texas Home Rule Municipal Corporation

By:

Name:

Title:;

Signature Page to Ground Lease Agreement



EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
3.45 ACRE TRACT

A 3.45 acre tract or parcel of land situated in Chamberlain Park, as shown on a Map of

Kingsville, Kleberg County, Texas. recorded in Book “A”, Page 86, Map Records of
Kleberg County, Texas. Said 3.45 acre tract beéing miore particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 5/8” diameter iron rod with red cap stamped “Naismith Eng. C.C,,
Tx.™ set this survey and being_ at the southwest comer of said-Chamberlain Park. same
being the intersection of the north right-of-way line of King Avenue (80" R.O.W .) and the
east right-of-way line of 2nd Strect (60° R.O.W.);

THENCE North 01°01°22™ West, along the east right-of~way line of sa-id 2nd. Street,
same. being the west line of said Chamberlain Park. and the herein described traét, a

distance of 424.61 feet to a 5/8” iron rod set with red cap stamped “Naismith Eng, C.C
Tx.™, for-the northwest corner; :

THENCE North 88°5848™ East, departing sald common line and across said
Chamberlain Park being the north line of this tract, a distance of 399,88 feet to a 5/8” iron.
rod set for the northeast corner of this tract, same being a point on the west line of 3™
Street (60" R.O.W.);" ‘ : ) . 7

THENCE South 01°61°12” East, along the east line of this tract and the west line of said
3rd Street, a distance of 190.58 feet to a 5/8™ iron rod set for corner;

THENCE _South B8°58°48™ Waest, across said Chamberlain Parlk, a distance of 165.98
feet 1o 2 5/8” iron rod set for corner: S

. THENCE South 01°01M2™ East, across said Chambe’rléin Park, a distance of 118.49 feet
to a 5/8” iron rod set for corner;

T‘HENCE_: North 89°05°20™ East, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 165.98 feet
to a 5/8” iron rod set for corner, same being the west line of said 3rd Sireet;

THENCE South 01°01° 12 East, dlong the east line of this tract and the west line of said

3rd-Street, 4 distance of 115.14 feet to a 5/8” iron rod set for the southeast corner of this

tract and said Chamberlain Park, s#ime being the intersection of theé west line of said 3%
Street with the north line of said King Avenue;

THENCE South 88°58702" West, along the south line of this 'E?actﬂ same being the north
line of said..Ki_:ng Avenue, a distance of 399.85 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and
containing 150,077 square feet or 3.45 acres of land,

Subject to reservation of non-exclusive parking and access easement described in Vol 425, Page
911, Official Public Records of Kleberg County, Texas.

Exhibit A to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

UPON RECORDING RETURN TO:

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY
INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS
FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER
OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

This Memorandum of Lease, is made this  day of , 20, between
King- High Historical Foundation, a Texas non-profit corporation, hereinafter designated
"LANDLORD" and The City of Kingsville, 2 Home Rule Municipal Corporation, hereinafter
designated "TENANT".

LANDLORD and TENANT entered into a Ground Lease Agreement (the "Agreement”) on

, 20 for an initial term of twenty-five (25) years, commencing on the Effective Date
(defined herein). Tenant has the option to extend the term for up to two (2) additional ten (10)
year periods unless terminated under the terms of the Agreement.

LANDLORD has leased to TENANT that certain parcel of property (the "Property™), located at
100 N. 3 Sireet, Kingsville, Texas, 78364, and being a 3.45 acre tract of land further described
in that cerfain Gift Deed, dated December 4, 2009, by and between the Board of Trustees of the
Kingsville independent School District, as Grantor, and King High Historical Foundation, as
Grantee, recorded in Volume 425, Page 911, Official Public Records of Kleberg County, Texas
(the “Gift Deed”), subject to Grantor’s reservation of a non-exclusive parking and access
easement as set forth in said Gift Deed. The Property is described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto
and made a part hereof.

The Effective Date of the Agreement, of which this is a Memorandum, is ' ,
20 .

The terms, covenanis and provisions of the Agreement, the terms of which are hereby
incorporated by reference into this Memorandum, shall extend to and be binding upon the
respective executors, administrators, successors and assigns of LANDLORD and TENANT.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

Exhibit B to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, hereunto and to a duplicate hereof, LANDLORD and
TENANT have caused this Memorandum to be duly executed on the date first written
hereinabove.

LANDLORD: King High Historical Foundation,
a Texas Non-Profit Corporation

By:
Print Name:
Print Title:
Date:

TENANT: City of Kingsville, a Home Rule
Municipal Corporation

By:
Print Name:
Print Title:
Bate:

Exhibit B to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



STATE OF TEXAS

S8
COUNTY OF KLEBERG
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 201 _, by
, the of the King High Historical
Foundation, a Texas non-profit corporation, on behalf of said corporation.
Notary Public, State of Texas
STATE OF TEXAS
SS
COUNTY OF KLEBERG
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 201 , by
, the of the City of Kingsville, a

Home Rule municipal corporation, on behalf of said corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas

Exhibit B to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6




EXHIBIT "A" TO MEMORANDUM OF LEASE
“PROPERTY”

Exhibit B to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



EXHIBIT C

AGREEMENT DATED DECEMBER 11, 2008

[see attached]

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



AGREEMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF KLEBERG

ON this 11th day of December, 2008, thc BOARD QF TRUSTEES OF THE
KINGSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT and the KING HIGH HISTORICAL
FOUNDATION (collectively, the “Parties”) ‘enter into this Agreement.

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Kingsville Independent School District (the
“District”) has determined that the real property known as the Old H. M. King High School
property, described in attached Exhibit “A* (the “Property”) is not necessary for the
construction of facilities to meet the eurrent and foresceable needs of the District for educational

purposes;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is authorized by Texas Education Code Section
11.1541 and District policy CDB (LEGAL) to donate real property and improvements formerly
used as a school campus to a municipality, county, state agency or a 501(0)(3) nonprofit
orgarfization;

WHEREAS, the King High Historical Foundation. (“Foundation™) is & Texds nonprofit
corporation ‘exenipt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a), Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of that Code;

" WHEREAS, the Foundation was formed for the’ purpose of preservation of the Old H.M.
King High School Building located on the Propérty;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Education Code section 11.1541, on December 11, 2008,
the Kingsville Independent School District Board of Trustees; after a public hearing held on
Deécember 11, 2008, by a vote of {__to D, passed a Resolution donating the Property to
the King High H1stoncal Foundation, which Resolution is incorporated herein and made a part
hereof by reference as if copied herein verbatim; and

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees has determined ihat (1) the 1mprovernents on the
Property have_ historical significance, (2) the transfer will further the preservation of the
improvements, (3) at the time of the transfer, the District does not meed the real property or
mprovements Tor educational purposes, (4) that the Foundation is a nonprofit organization as
defined in Texas Education Code settion; 11.1541(c), and {5) the Foundation has shown to the
satisfaction of the Board of Trustees that it intends to continue the nse of the Plope iy and
mlprovements for public pmposes

. Agreement Page 1 of6 12/04/0%

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



WHEREAS, the Henrietta M. King High School is a structure that is listed on National
Regisiry of Historic places, which documents the importance of the historical structure to the US
and Texas; and

WHEREAS, preserving the integrity of Henrietta M. King Scheol is important nhot only
to-the community, but also to document the history of the region, once known as the Wild Horse
Desert.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants set forth herein and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the Parties agree.as follows: .

1. PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THIS AGREEMENT

1.1 The Property which shall be held and occupied subject to this Agreement is described as
foliows:

See metes and bounds description of the Property in Exhibit “A» attached hereto,
together with all improvemenis on the Property.

2. CONYEYANCE

2.1 The Preamble provisions of this Agreement arc incorporated herein and made part hereof
and shall have a full binding effect on all of the Parties,

2.2 The covenants, restrictions and conditions set forth in this Agreement shall run with the
land for the term of this Agreement and shall be binding on all Parties hawng any right, title or
interest in the Property and their respective SUCCESSOTS and permitted assigns,

2.3 Upon execution of this Agreement by the Partles the District will donate the Property to
the Foundation by Gift Deed in the form attached as Exhibit “C»,

2.4  The deed which conveyed the Property to the District contains the following express
condifion (the “Condition”);

The express condition of this conveyance is that the land and premises herein convéyed
shall be used for public free school purposes only and that whenever same is used for any
other puirpose than the use of public free school or schools, the said land and premises
revert immediately to me and my heirs,

2.5 IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the conveyance of the
Property shall be effective for only so long as the Foundation uses the Property for a pblic
purpose and does not execute a document that purports to convey the Property, hewever the
Foundation shall have the right to assign the Property to a same or similar nou-profit
organization. In the event that the Foundation no longer uses the Property for a public purpose

Agreement Page2 of 6 12/04/08

Exhibit C to Ground Leasc Agreement

#4538743.6



or executes a document that purports to convey the Property, the Property shall revert to the
District.

2,6  The District reserves from the conveyance a pafki,ng and access easement on, over and
across the portion of the Property described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “B” attached hereto
(the “Easgeinent Property™).

2.7 The District reserves from the conveyance the right to occupy and use the Laser Building
and Machine Shop Building until August 30, 2010 without payment to the Foundation. During
the term of such occupancy and use, the District shall, at the District’s sole cost, insure and
maintain the Laser Building and Maclkine Shop Building to the same extent insured and
maintained prior to the conveyance of the Property.

2.8  The Foundation accepts conveyance of the Property subject to the Conditions and
reservations herein, :

3. USE

3,1  The Foundation shall preserve and restore the Old H.M. King High School Building and,
to the éxten’t applicable, coordinate such r_estoraﬁon with the Texas Historical Comumission.

3.2 The Foundation shall use the Property and improvements on the Property for public
purposes. Subject to acceptance by the City of Kingsville, a portion of the Old 11.M King High
School Building may be used as a City Hall.

3.3 The Property may be used for educational purposes, however, in no event shall the
Property or improvements on the Property, or a pertion thereof be used by any public school
district except the Kingsville Independent School District.'

3.4 The District Board of Trustees will determine and assign a representative of the Disirict
to the Foundation Board of Directors. The Foundation shall appeirit the District’s representative
as a non-voting, ex-officio member of the Foundation’s Board of Directors.

4. ENFORCEMENT

4.1 Any material breach or violation the provisions of this Agreement by any Party shall give
rise immediately to the right on the part of a non-violating Party, at its option, upon thirty (30)
days® wiritten nofice fo the vmlatmg Party, o have the violating Party cure the breach or viclation
within 120 days,

4.2 In addition to-any other remedy of any Party provided herein, any Party shall have the
right, but not the ebligation, to enforce all provisions of this Agreement. Failure to enforce any
provision shall not be deemed a waiver of the right. The Agreement may be enforced by a Party,
its successors and permitted assigns, by any and all remedies available at law or in equity,

' No other school-entity will be allowed to become a permanent tenant within the confines of the O1d King High
Property:

Agreement. Page 3 of 6 12/04/08

Exhibit € to Ground Lease Agresment

#4538743.6



including, without limitation, injunctfve relief, without the necessity of showing irreparable harm
or injury.

4.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the Fotndation has not begun
use of the Old H.M. King High School for a public purpose within ten (10} years of the effective
date of this Agreement, wpon notice and opportunity to cure as provided in section 4.1, all right,
title and interest in the Property shall automatically revert to and vest in the Distriet without the
necessity of any further act on the part of or on behalf of the District, it being the intent of
District to convey a determinable estate. The Parties agree that the convéyance of the Old H.M.

King High School to the Foundation is subject to the provisious of Texas Education Code section
11.1541, as amended.

5, - TERM. This Agreement shall run with and bind the Property for a period of twenty-five
{25) years from the effective date hereof, after which tihe the Agreement shall be- automatically
extended. for successive périods of ten (10) years each, unless terminated by written notice
executed by the Parties.

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1 This Agreernent constifutes the final and entire agreement between the Parties bereto as
of the Effective Daté and contains. all of the terms and conditions agreed upon. No other
agreemients, oral or-otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be déeried to
exist or to bind the Parties hereto unless same is in writing, dated subsequent to the date hereof,
and duly executed by the Paities.

6.2 For purposes of this Agreement, all official communications and notices among the
Parties shall be deemed given if in writing and mailed, registered or certlﬁed mail, postage
prepaid, return receipt requested, to the addresses set forth below:

Kingsville Independent School Bistrict
ATTN: Superintendent of Schools

PO Box 871

Kingsville, Texas 78364-0871

King High Historical Foundation
700 North Saint Mary’s Street; Suite 1200
San Antonjo, Texas 78205-3510

With copyto:

Jane H. Macon

Fulbright & Jaworski. LLP
300-Convent Street, Suite 2200
San Antonio, Texas 782035

6.3  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the Parties hereto, or by ;';my
third party, as creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint venturers or any

Agreement Page 4 of & 12/04/08

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement

#4538743.6



other similar such relationiship between the Parties hereto, It is expressly uiiderstood and agreed
that the Foundation is and shall be deemed to be an independent éntity responsible to all Parties
for its acts or omissions and that the District shall in no way be responsible therefore.

6.4 This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of
Texas, and all obligations of thie Parties created hereunder are performable in Kleberg County,
Texas. Any legal action or proceeding brought or maintained, directly or indirectly, as a resuit of
this Agreement shall be heard and determined in the City of Kingsville, Kleberg County, Texas.

6.5 This Agreement may be executed in mwitiple counterparts, which together shatl
constitute but one and the. sameé instrument, and counterpart of thé signature pages hereto
separately executed by each of the Parties hereto may be collated and attached to one counterpart
hereof to collectively constitute one fully exécuted instrument.

6.6  Invalidation of any one of the provxsmns covenants or resfrictions set forth in this
Declaration by judgment or court order shall in no wise affect any other provisions which shall
remain in full force and effect. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties, through their authorized representatives, have duly
executed this Agreement on the date of signatory by the parties below.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the
KINGSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL
DISTRICT

‘By: r%MfW

Name; Larry6arza
Title: President

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF KLEBERG

This instrufnent was acknowledged before me 0nB-t’-/‘f‘""“-*["-‘-'“>~5

2009, by Larry&iarza, President of the Board of Trustees of the Kingsville independent School
District, au independent school distriet and political subdivision of the State of Texas, on behalf
of said pohtl_cal subdivisiorn.

DELL. e.bMEz ™ %‘/Q——% /5167"’%/

Notary Publi , Notary Public, State of\Feﬁas

Staie of Taxas

Agreement Page 5 of 6 12/04/08

Exhibit C to Ground Ecase Agreement

#4533743.6



KING HIGH HISTORICAL FOUNDATION:

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF KLEBERG
This jnstrument was acknowledged before me on M
2009; by [Aelerd Gloresy ., President of the King High Historical Foundation, a

“Texas Nonprefit Corporation, on ‘behalf of said corporation.

";DELLGOMEZ S }Kj

tary Putl A |
glgggf# ole Notary Public, State of Texas &

a«df Myccmm Exp Tods2013

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

Mr. George Mr. George E. Grimes, Jr.

WALSH, ANDERSON, BROWN, SCHULZE & ALDRIDGE, P.C,
100 N E. Loop 410, Suite 900

San Antonio, Texas 78216

Apreement Page 6 of 6 12/04/08

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



#4538743.6

"EXHIBIT A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
3.45 ACRE TRACT

A 3.45 acre tract or parcel of land situated. in Chamberlain Park, as shown on a Map of
Kingsville, Kleberg County, Texas, recorded in Book “A”, Page 86, Map Records of
Kleberg County, Texas. Said 3.45 acre tract being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 5/8” diameler iron rod with red cap stamped “Naismith Eng. C.C,,
Tx.” set this survey and being at the southwest corner of sajd Chamberlain Park, same
being the intersection of the north right-of-way line of King Avenue (80° R.O.W.) and the
cast right-of-way line of 2nd Street (60° ROW.); .

THENCE North 01°01'22” West, slong the east tight-of-way line of said 2nd Street,
same being the west line of said Chamberlain Park, and the herein described tract, a

distance of 424.61 fest to a 5/8” iron Tod set with red cap stamped “Naismith Eng. C.C.,-

Tx.”, for the northwest corner;’

*

THENCE North B88°38'4§” East, departing said common Iine and across said
Chamberlain Park being the north line of this tract, a distance of 399.88 feet to a 5/8” iron
rod set for the northeast corner of this tract, same being a point on the west line of 3™
Strect (60° R.OW.), . : . i

THENCE South 01°01°12” East, along the enst line of this tract:and the west line of said
3rd Street, a distance of 190.58 feettoa 5/ g” iron rod et for corner;

THENCE South 88°58'48" West, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 165,08
feet to a 5/8” iron rod set for corner; ' .

THENCE Sowh 01°01'12” Bast, across said Chamberlain Park, a-distance of 118.49 feet
to a 5/8” iron rod set for corner; ] . '

THENCE North 89°05°20" Fast, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 16598 feet
to a 5/8” iron rod set for cotner, same being the west line of said 5rd Street;

THENCE South 01°01°12” East, along the east line of this tract and the west line of said
3rd Street, 8 distance of 115.14 feet 1o a 5/8” iron rod set for the southeast comer of this
tract and said Chamberlain Park, same being the intersection of the west line of said 39
Street with the north line of said King Avenue;

THENCE South 88°58°02> West, along the south line of this tract, same being the north
line of said King Avenue, a distance of 399,85 feet to the POINT -OF BEGINNING and
containing 150,077 square feet or 3.45 acres of land,

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement



NOTE;

ALL BEARINGS ARE GRID BEARINGS BASEL ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE -~
SYSTEM FOR THE LAMBERT SOUTH ZONE (NAD 1983) AND ALL DISTANCES
ARE TRUE DISTANCES. .

Registered Préddssional Land Surveyor
Texas Registration No. 4147
Naismith Engineering, Inc.

Date: H-1o ”2908

"\-p 41 47 1-.s‘ . 7
g, Vit o
Y ‘4.&: o 'E"',OQ" 47

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



#4538743.6

BXV QT “8 Y

ACCESS EASEMENT
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
0,58 ACRE TRACT

A 0.58 acre tract or parcel of land sitnated in Chamberlain Park, as shown on a Map of
Kingsville, Kleberg County, Texas, recorded in Book “A”, Page 86, Map Records of
Kleberg County, Texas. Said 0.58 acre tract being more particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at 2 5/8’ diameter iron rod with red cap stamped “Naismith Eng, C.C.,
Tx.” set this survey and being at the southwest corner of said Chamberlain Park, same
heing the intersection of the north right-of-way line of King Averme (80° R.O.W.} and the
east right-of-way line of 2nd Street (60° ROW); -

THENCE N 88°58°02" E, along said north right-of-way line of King Avenue, a distance
of 131.38 feet to the southwest comer of the herein described accsss easement and THE
POINT OF BEGINNING; :

THENCE North 01°56°13” West, departing said King Avenve right-of-way and acrossl
said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 80.67 fest o a point for cormer;

THENCE Notth 46°21°03" East, ‘across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 34,61 feet
t0 a point for comer; T S

THENCE. North 85° 12°25” Hast, across said Chamberain Park; a distance of 87.0] feet
to a point for corner; i

TﬁENCE North 02°21°01" East, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 5.68 feet to
a point for corner;

THENCE North 89°05"20" East, acsoss said Chamberlain Park, & distance of 138.55 fo
point for corner; B

THENCE South 01 °02°17” East, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 101,22
feet to a point for comer; : :

THENCE South 88°35°17" West, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 145,64
feet 10 4 point for corner; ' .

THENCE South 01°00°47" West, across said Chamberlain Park;’a distance of 9.39 faot
toa point for commer; i

THENCE South 88°04°32” West, across said Chamberlaia Park, a distance of 55,24 feet
to & point for corner; s

THENCE South 00°55°26” West, across said Chamberlajn Park, a distance of 2.72 feet
to a point for comer, same being the north tight-of-way line of said King Avenue;

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement



#4538743.6

THENCE South 83758702 West, along said right-of-way of Km,g Avenue, a distance of
44.62 feet 1o the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 25, 413 square feet or 0.58
acte of land.

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE GRID BEARINGS BASED ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE
SYSTEM FOR THE LAMBERT SOUTH ZONE (NAD 1983) AND ALL DISTANCES
A&JW‘DISTAN CES.

Lamry A, er, RPLS

Registere fessional Land Surveyor

Texas Registration No. 4147
Naismith Engineering, Inc.

Drate: [~ 12- 2008

Exhibit C to Ground Lease Agreement



EXHIBITD

GIFT DEED DATED DECEMBER 4, 2009

[see attached]

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



ja. 425e6e 911

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY
REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF TEE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY
INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS
FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR
YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER.

2819322
GIFT DEED
Date: December 4, 2009
Grantor: Boawrd OF TRUSTEES OF THE

KINGSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Grantor’s Mailing Address: 207 N, Third
Kingsville, Texas 78363

Kleberg-County

Grantee: KiNGg  HIGH HiSTORICAL FOUNDATION, a Texas WNon-Profit
Corporation

Grantee=s Mailing Address: 700 Notrthi Saint Mary®s Street, Suite 1200 .

San Antonio, Texas 78205-3510
Bexar County

Consideration:  Pursuant lo the terms of Kingsville Independent School District’s Board of
Trustee’s Decerrber 11, 2008, Resolution authorizing the ddonation ol the below
described real property and the improvements thereon and pursuaint 1o Texas
Education Code seciion 11.1541 (Vernon 2006). -

Praperty:

See metes and bounds deseription of ihe real property and improvements thereon (the
“Property”yin Exhibit “A” attached hereto and madle a part hereaf for all purposes (“Land™),
together with improvements 10 the Land (*Improvements™).

Fee Simple Determinable Condition:

IT1S EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that this conveyance shull be elfective
for only so long as Grantee-uses the Property for a public purpose and does not execute a
document that purports to convey the Propérty. In the event that Grantee no longer uses the
Property for a public purpose or executes a document that purports to.convey'the Property.
the Property shall reverl to Grantor.

Gili Deed Page 1 of 3 12004/08

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement
#43538743.6




.

vo. 425pe 912

Rescervations from and Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty:

Grantlor reserves a non-cxclusive, ;pcrpctualr parking and access easement on, overand across
‘the portion of the Property deseribed by métes and bounds on Exhkibit “B” attached hereto.

Reversionary interests in the Propetty contained in the deed from Henrietta M. King to the
Trustees of the Kingsville Independent School District dated Octaber 14, 1911, filed for record in
Volume __ ,Pagé  , of the deed records of Kleberg County; Texas.

Validly existing easements, rights-of-way, and prescriptive. rights, whether of record of not;
all presently recorded and validly existing restrictions, reservations, covenants, conditions, oil and
gas lcascs, mineral interests outstanding in persons other than Grantor, and otherinstr wmnents; othier

than conveyances of the siirface fee estate, that affect the Properiy: validly exisling rights of
adjoining owners in any walls and fences situated on a common boundary; any discrepancies,

conflicts, ot shortages in darea or ‘boundary lines; any encroachments of overlapping of improvemgents;
all rights, obligations, and other mafters arising from and exisling by reason of any Kleberg County
water or utility distriel; and taxes for 2010, which Grantee assumes and agrces to pay, and
subscquent assessments for that and prior years due to change in land usage, ownership, or both, the
payment of which Grantee assumes,

Thefollowing conditions-apply (o this lransaction pursuant 1o Federal Court COrder in Civil
Action No, 5281, Unifed Siaies v. Texas:

The further covenant, con sideration’and condition is that the following restiictions shall in all
things be observed, followed arid complied with:

a. ‘The above-described realty, or any pari thercof, shall not be used in the opération of,
‘or inconjunction with,.any school or other institution of learning, study or instruction
which discriminates against any person bécause of his racé, color or national ori gin,
regardiess of whether such discrimination be effected by design or otherwise,

b. ‘The above-described realty, orany part thereof, shall not beused in the operation of,
or in conjunetion with, any school or other institution of learning, study or instruction
which creates maintain, refnforces, renews, or encotirages, orwhich intends 1o create,

maintain, reinforee, renew, or encourage; a dual systein.

These restrictions and cond:tlons shall be binding upon ‘the Grantee, 'its syccessors and
assigns, fora. penod of fifty years froi the date hereof;.and in case of violation of cither or both of
the above restrictions. the estate herein granted shall, without enlry or suit, immiediately revert to and
invest in the Grantor herein and its successors, this instrument shall be nul! and veid, and Grantor
and its successors shall'be entilled to immediate possession of such prem ises and the improvements
thereon; and no act or omission upon the part of the Graittor heréin and its successors shall be &

~waiver of the operation or enforcement of such condition.

Gift Deed Page 2 of 5 12/04/08

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement

#4538743.0



vo.. 428pee 943

The restrictions set out in paragraph “a” above shall be construed to be for the benefit of any
person prejudiced by its violation, The restriction specified in paragraph “b™ above shall be
construed for the benefit of any public school district or any person prejudiced by its violation.

The property described herein is gifted in its present “as is” condition. Grantormakes no
warranties or representations, expressed or implied, as to the quality, quantity, or condition of the
property orthe improvements sitnated upon the property. Grantee herein, inaccepting this Deed,
acknawlcdges that it has inspected the property, is fully cognizant of the property’s condition, and
accepts it in its “asis” condition. Grantee acknowledges that there is no obligation of any kind upon
Grantor 1o make any repairs 10, restoration of, or maintenance of the property or the Iimprovements.

AFTER CLOSING, AS BETWEEN GRANTEE AND GRANTOR, THE RISK OF
LEABILITY OR EXPENSE FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROBLEMS, EVEN IF ARISING FROM
EVENTS BEFORE CLOSING, WILL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF GRANTEE,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROBLEMS WERE KNOWN OR
UNKNQWN AT CLOSING. ONCE CLOSING HAS OCCURRED, GRANTEE INDEMNIFIES,
‘HOLDS HARMLESS, AND RELEASES GRANTOR FROM LIABILITY FOR ANY LATENT
DEFECTS AND FROM ANY LIABILITY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROBLEMS AFFECTING
THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING LIABILITY UNDER THE COMPREHENSIVE
ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE, COMPENSATION, AND LIABILITY ACT (CERCLA), THE
RESQURCE CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY ACT {RCRA), THE TEXAS SOLID WASTE
DISPOSAL ACT, OR THE TEXAS WATER CODE. GRANTEE INDEMNIFIES, HOLDS
HARMLESS, AND RELEASES GRANTOR FROM ANY LIABILITY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
PROBLEMS AFFLC FING THE PROPERTY ARISING AS THE RESULT OF THEORIES OF
PRODUCTS LIABILITY AND STRICTLIABILITY,:OR UNDER NEW LAWS OR CHANGES
TO EXISTING LAWS ENACTED AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE THAT WOULD _
OTHERWISE IMPOSE ON GRANTORS IN THIS TYPE OF TRANSACTION NEW
LIABILITIES FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROBLEMS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY.
GRANTEE FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND, AT ITS OWN EXPENSE, AND ON BEHALT OF
GRANTOR AND IN THE NAME OF GRANTOR ANY CLAIM OR LITIGATION BROUGHT IN
CONNECTION WITH ANY SUCH ENVIRONMENTAL PROBLEMS AFFECTING THE
PROPERTY.

Grintor, for the consideration and subject to the reservations from convevance and
exceptions.to convéyance and warfanty, grants, and: conveys to Grantee the property, together with
all anrdt singular the rights and appurichances thereto in anywise belonging unto the said Graniee,
their heirs, beneficiaries, successors and -assigns for as long as the Fee Sinple Determinable
Condition is satisfied, and iFthe Fee Simple Delerminable Condition is not satisfied, the Propérty
will automatically revert to and be owned by Grantor without the necessity of any further acton.the
part.of Granlor, it being the Grantor’s intent 1o convey a fee simple determinable astate to Grantee.
Grantor binds itself and its successors o WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular
the said premises unto the said Grantee, their heirs, benefi iciarics, successors and assigns, against
every person whomsaoever lawd ully clalmmg orto clain the same or any part thercof, excepl as to the
reservations from and exccplions 0 conveyirice and warranty, when the ¢laim is by, through or
under Grantor but-not otherwise.

Gift Peed Page 3 of 5 12704108

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6




‘VUL 42500 914

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronouns include the plugal.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
KINGSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL
DISTRICT

By: /AA//M

arry Gafza, President”

THE STATE OF TEXAS ) N
} ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF KLEBERG !

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, on this.day personally appeared LARRY GARZA, known to
me 1o be the person whose.name s subscribed to ihe foregoing instrument, and having been sworn,
upon his oath stated that he is the President of the Boeard of Trustees of the Kingsvillé Independent
Schiool District; that he was authorized to execute such instrument pursuant to résolition of the
Board of Trustees adopted on December 11, 2008; and that said instrument is execated as the free
and voluntary act and deed of such governmentat unit for the purposes and consideration expressed
therein. A

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the /é“_d‘ day of

December, 2009,

Notaty Publxc, Statdd of Texas

el SYLVIA lindaosa v

wy COMMISSION EXPIHES
Septomber 12, 2012

Gilt Deed Page 4 of 5 12/04/008

Exlribit D te Ground Lease Agrcement
#4538743.6



ViL. 425 915

ACKNOWLEDGED AND APPROVED:
Kmg MiGH FIISToRICAL FOUNDATION, a Texas Non-Profit Corporation

bS5 s Tt
= =
Prinited Name: = A )z @&ﬁ

Title: /:?p. 4/;,{ 3. ot B A

w2 /1% /05
/‘ V4

Return o Grantee’s Address:

King High Historical Foundation

700 North Saint Mary’s Street, Suite 1200
San Antonio, Texas 78205-3510

Giit Deed Page 5 of 3 12104708

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agresment
#4538743.6



v 4925me 916

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
3.45 ACRE TRACT

A 3.45 acre tract or parcel of land situated in Chamberlain Park, as shown on a Map of
Kingsville, Kleberg County, Texas, rézorded in Book “A™ Page 86, Map Records of
Kleberg County, Texas. Said 3.45 acre tract being more parucular] y described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 5/8” diameter iron rod with red cap stamped *Naismith Eng. C.C,,
Tx.” set this survey and being at the southwest corner of said Chamberlain Park. same
beiny the intersection of the north ri ght-of way line of King Avenue (80" R.O.W.) and the
east right-of-way line of 2nd Street (60" R.O.W.};

THENCE North 01201722 West, along the east right-of-way line of said 2nd Street.
same being the west line of said Chamberlain Park, and the herein described tract, a
dleElIlLE ol 424.61 feel to a 5/8iron rod set with red cap stamped “Naismith Eng. C.C.,
Tx.™, for the northwest corner;

THENCE North 88°58°48" [Fast, departing said common line and ‘acro’ss_ said
Chamberiain Park being the north line of this tract, a distance of 399.88 feel to a 5/8 iron

rod set for the northeast.corner of this tract, same being a point on the west linc of 3™
Street (60° R.O.W.); .

THENCE South 01°00°[2” East, along the eask line of this tract and the west line of said
3rd Stréet; a distance of 190.58 feet to 4 5/8" iron rod:sct forcomer;

THENCE South 38°58°48" West, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 165.98
feet 10 a 5/87 iron rod set for corner;

THENCE. S_nui‘l_} 01°01°12” East. across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 118.49 fect
to a 5/8” iron rad set for corer;

THENCE North §9°05° 20 East, acioss said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 165.98 fect
to a 518" iron rod set for corner, same being the west line of said 3rd Street;

THENCE South 0120112 East, along the east lirie 61 this tract and the west line of said
3rd Stréet, a distance of 115.14 feet to a 5/8” iron rod set for the southeast comer of this
tract and said Chamberlain Patk, samc being the intersection of the west Tine of said 3%
Street with the north line of said King Avenue;

THENCE South 88°58°02" West, along the south line of this fract, same being the north
line of said King Avenue, a distance of 399.85 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and
containitig 150,077 square feet or 3.45 acres of land.

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6




#4538743.6

voL. 428mer 81

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE GRID BEARINGS BASED ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE
SYSTEM FOR THE LAMBERT SOUTH ZONE NAD 1983) AND ALL DISTANCES

ARE TRUE DISTANCIES.
. P
B O B

Larry A. Fishef, RPFLS

Registered Profeéssional Land Surveyor
Texas Registration No. 4147

Naismith Engineering, Tric.

Date: f I* o - Z@OS

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement



#4538743.6

VaL.

4256 918
EXHIBIT "B™
ACCESS EASEMENT
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
(.58 ACRE TRACT

A 0.58 acre tract or parcel of land situated in Chamberlain Park, as shown on a Map. of
Kingsville, Kleberg County, Texas, recorded in Book “A™, Page 86, Map Records of
Kleberg County, Texas. Said 0.58 acre tractbeing more particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at a 5/8” diameter iron rod with red cap-stamped “Naismith Eng. C.C.
Tx.” set this survey and being at the southwest corner of said Chamberlain Park, same
being the intersection of the north right-of-way: line of King Avenue (80’ R.0.W.) and the
cast right-of-way line of 2nd Street (60° RO W)

THENCE N 88°38%02" E, along said north right-of-way line of King Avenue, a distance

of 131.38 feet o the southwest corner of the hcrem described access easement and THE,
POINT OF BEGINNING

THENCE North 01°56°13” West, departing said King Avenue right-of-way and across
said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 80.67 fect to a point for corner;

THENCE North 46°21°03” East, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 34.61 foct
to-a point for corner;

THENCK North 85° 12'25” Bast, across said Chambérlain Park, a distance of 87.01 feet
to-n point for corner;

THENCE North 02°21°01” East, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 5.68 feet to
a point for corner;

THENCE North 8§9°05°20" East, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 1385510 a
point for corner;

THENCE South 0% “02°17” East, across said Chambertain Park, a distance of 101.22
feetto 4 point for corher;

THENCEF South $88°35°17” Woest, scross said (,hamberlam Park, a distance of 149.64
feet to a point for corner:

THENCE South D1°00°47” West, across said Chamberlain Park, a distance of 9,39 feot
to a point for corner;

THENCE South 88°04°32" Wesl, across said Chambertain Park, a distance of 55.24 feet
to a point for corner;

THENCE South 0095526 West, across said Chamberfain Park, a distance of 2.72 feet
to'a point for corner, same being the north right-af-way Jine of said King Avenue;

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement



vo.. 4250 919

THENCE South 88°58°02" West, aleng said right-of-way of King Avenue, a distance of
44,62 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 25,413 square feet or (.58
acre of land,

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE GRID BEARINGS BASED ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE
SYSTEM FOR THE LAMBERT SOUTH ZONE (NAD 1983) AND ALL DISTANCES

A&T:\?E DISTA\ICES

Larry A. er, R_PLS

Registerca¥ cfcssional Land Surveyor
Texas Registration No, 4147

Naismith Engineering, Tnc.

Date: __l{~ |Z- 2008

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6



ca AGE 420 ; '

Yo 425;3&55 92 oier - 281922
FILED FDR RE.QDRD
00 JAN -5 RHII: LT

LEQ AL ARCON
-'):‘JURT‘:’_CLERK RLEBERG COI_JN'IY
8Y. M. -
i em 1 DEPUT: :
CLARISSA'M. FIORENO

THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF KLEBERG, [ HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS FILED ON THE DATE AND TIME STAMPED
HEREON BY ME AND WAS DULY RECORDED IN THE. OFFICIAL RECORDS
OF KLEBERG COUNTY, TEXAS |

VOL ﬂ: ! ) PAG'_E Ell l
‘,,|Illll""

S "Oo',';. JAN -7 2010
5 0 AT RECORDING DATE,
8 CounTa ~ LEO ALARCON
Hagpyona®?

COUNTY CLERK, KLEBERG COUNTY

ANY PROVISIONS HEREIN WHICII RESTRICTS THE SALE; RENTAL, OR
USE OF THE DESCRIBED REAL PROPERTY BECAUSE OF COT,0R OR
RACE INVALID AND ENFORCEABLE UNDER FEDERAL LAW

RETURN TO:

LAW OFFICE OF SAM FUGATE
PO BOX 1265
KINGSVILLE, TX 78364-1265

RECORDERS MEMORANDUM:
ALL OR PART OF A SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER, IE-CONTAINED IN THIS DOCIIMENT,
MAY HAVE BEEN REDACTED. TEX. GOV'T CODE SEC. 552.147 (b) THE COUNTY CLERK
. MAY REDACT A LIVING PERSON’S SOCIAL SECTURITY NUMBER FROM ANY OR
ALL DOCUMENTS CONTAINED FOR DISCLORE BY KLEEERG COUNTY.

Exhibit D to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6




EXHIBIT E
BUDGET

[see attached]

Exhibit E to Ground Lease Agreement
#4538743.6




Exhibit E

Budget — Historic HM King High School Renovations

The City of Kingsville has set aside funding in FY 2014-2015 budget for renovation expenditures from the
following funding sources

® Fund 091 - General Fund Capital Projects - $2,700,000
* Fund 054 — Utility Fund Capital Projects - $700,000

There is an additional budget amendment request in the amount of $467,519 from Fund 051 — Utility
Fund.



AGENDA ITEM #4



Purchasing/Technology

Department
361-595-8025
361-595-8035 Fax

DATE: November 5, 2014

TO: City Commission through City Manager
FROM: David Mason, Purchasing/Technology Director
SUBJECT: Drilling of Water Well #25

SUMMARY
This item authorizes the award of the contract for the drilling portion of Water

Well # 25.

BACKGROUND

LNV Engineering, 801 Navigation, Corpus Christi, TX is the engineer of record for
this project and created the bid documents. Bids were advertised in the Kingsville
Record on July 27, 2014 and August 3, 2014. A prebid meeting was held August 6,
2014 at 10:30 am in the City of Kingsville Commission Chambers with site
visitation. Bid opening was August 23, 2014 at 1:30 pm with three (3) responsive
bids for drilling and one for tank construction. Bid Tab for drilling portion is below:

Alsay, Inc McKinnley Drilling Layne Corp.
$723,000 $928,600 $943,600
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the contract for the drilling of the water well be awarded to Alsay Inc.,
3359 S. E Loop 410, San Antonio, TX 78222. Juan Pimentel, P.E. of LNV is in concurrence
as indicate by his attached recommendation.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
This will expend $723,000.00 from 066-5-600.2-720.25 CO Series 2011-Utility, of
which there is currently a balance of $798,853.00.




Engineering Department
361-595-8007
361-595-8035 Fax

DATE: Thursday November 6, 2014

TO: City Commission through City Manager

FROM: Juan Carlos Cardenas, Director of Public Works/City Engineer

SUBJECT: Supplemental information for pump house and ground storage tank for well #25

The construction of Well #25 is funded by CO 2011 Utility fund 066. There are two
components of Well #25 that was designed and bid: The construction of water well
#25 and the construction of the Pump house and ground storage tank. In August
2014, both components were designed and bid simultaneously. The bids came in at
$723,000.00 for the water well and $572,730.00 for the pump house and ground
storage tank. Furthermore, the Engineer’s estimate did comply with bids and CO
2011 fund 66. However, in FY 2014 only the construction of the water well #25 was
budgeted ($798,853.00, bid came in at $723,000.00). In FY 2013 — 2014 the water
well portion was budgeted but did not get completed, due to the time taken to
acquire the property. This project was rolled over to 2014-2015. The pump house
and ground storage tank was not budgeted in FY 2013-2014 and therefore not rolled
over in FY 2014-2015.

There are sufficient funds for the construction of the pump house and ground
storage tank in the fund balance of CO 2011 Utility fund 066 ($1.2M remaining after
FY 2014). The construction bid for the pump house and ground storage tank came
in at $572,730.00.

A budget amendment will follow in the next few weeks for the construction of the
pump house and ground storage tank for water well #25 for completion later this
fiscal year (FY 2015).



LNV

. ] Solutions Today with a
engineers [ architects , contractors -

Vision for Tomorrow

September 10, 2014

Mr. Vincent J. Capell, City Manager
City of Kingsville

200 East Kleberg Street

Kingsville, Texas 78364

Re:  City of Kingsville, Texas
Water Well No. 25 Improvements
Recommendation of Award

Dear Mr. Capell:

Bids were opened and read aloud on Wednesday, Augnst 20, 2014 for the above referenced project,
Three (3) bids were received and the resuits are shown on the attached bid summary and bid
tabulation sheets. The low/best bidder on the project is Alsay Inc., 3359 S. E. Loop 410, San
Antonio, Texas 78222 with a Total Base Bid in the amount of $723,000.00.

I have reviewed the Contractor’s qualifications and bid documents, and it is my recommendation
that the City award the project to Alsay Inc. in the total amount of $723,000.00.

Sincerely,
LNV

Engineers | Architects | Contractors
TOPE Firm M, 366 o

4n A. Pimentel, P.E.
“Project Engineer

Attachrments (2)

UAKingsville\l 10133 - Engineefing Services\020 - Water Welf\Bidding\Recomm Letter Water 25 Bid A doc

801 NAVIGATION | SUITE300 | CORPUS CHRIST), TEXAS 78408
OFFICE 361BB3.1984 | FAX 3618831986 | WWW.LNVINCCOM



Bid Summary Sheet

Project: Water Weil No. 25
Owner: City of Kingsviile, Texas
Bid Date & Time: Wadnesday, August 20, 2014 @ 1:30 PM
ADD A) Wolt
CONTRACTOR BID DOCUMENTS | #1 ) GST/ Pump Bldg.
Layne TX | X |Bid Security A) $943,600.00
| % |Proposal Form B) N/A
‘% |Disclosure Forms
Alsay | % {Bld Security A) $723,000.00
| X |Proposal Form B) N/A
'x {Disclosure Forms
MeKinley | X |Bid Security A) $928,300.00
| % |Proposal Form B) N/A
x |Disclosure Forms ]
Hubert Construction | % | Bid Security A) N/A
| % |Proposal Form B) $572,730.00
% |Disclosure Forms
|- |Bid Security A)
Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
| |Bid Security A)
Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
| |Bid Security A)
| Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
| 1Bid Security A)
|__[Proposal Form .{B}
Disclosure Forms
|- |Bid Security A)
Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
| _|Bid Security A)
. _|Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
| |Bid Security A)
. |Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
| |Bid Security A)
Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
|- _|Bid Sacurity A)
Proposal Form B)
Disclosure Forms
| {Bid Security A}
|._|Proposal Form B}

Disclosure Forms




BID TABULATION

PROPOSAL (A)
CITY OF KINGSVILLE LNV ENGINEERING
KINGSVILLE WATER WELL NC. 25 801 NAVIGATION, SUITE 300
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 78408

PHONE: 361/883-1984
FAX: 351/883-1986

ITeM [ @ty | UNIT DESCRIPTION
WATER WELL IMPROYVEMENTS

WATER WELL INCLUDING PUMP, MOTOR,
COLUMN PIPE CASING, FITTINGS, AND-ALL - 3 ’

At I LS ITEMS NOT MENTION BUT NECESSARY TO 928,360.00 928,300,004 723,000.00 723,000,00 943,600.00; 943.600.00
: COMPLETE IN PLACE per plans and specifications, .

jeomplete in place per fump siim, ’

WATER WELL IMPROVEMENTS SUB-TOTAL: ‘ o  928300.00§ 723,000.80 : 943.sni1.nuH

Prepared by
LNV ENGINEERING

Pagetati




ALSAYWATER.COM

November 5, 2014

LNV Engineers
801 Navigation, Suite 300
Corpus Christi, TX, 78408

Attn: Hector Castenada
Re: Kingsville Water Well No.25

Hector,

This letter is confirming that our original bid price for the above referenced water
well that bid on August 20, 2014 for a total of $723,000.00 is still applicable. Discussions
with our suppliers and contractors have determined that the pricing provided at the time
of the bid will be honored.

Alsay appreciates the City of Kingsville considering our bid and if we can provide
any additional information please give me a call.

Sincerely

AP

Steve Bell
General Manager

ANTONIO, TEXAS 78222 | 210.628.1099

I SAN

HOUSTON | 6615 GANT ROAD | HOUSTON, TEXAS 77066 | 281.444.6960 | SAN ANTONIO | 3359 SE LOOP 410



AGENDA ITEM #5



Purchasing/Technology
Department

DATE: October 29, 2014

TO: City Commission through City Manager
FROM: David Mason, Purchasing/IT Director
SUBJECT: Landfill Dump Truck

SUMMARY
This item authorizes the purchase of one 14 cu yd dump truck for use at the landfill.

BACKGROUND
We contacted three vendors for pricing on a 14 cu yd dump truck and we received
options from two potential BuyBoard vendors as shown below.

Quote Tab Dump Truck
Rush Truck Rush Truck Grande Truck Center | Grande Truck Center
Peterbilt 348 Peterhilt 348 Waestern Star 4700 Western Star 4700 w/
bed vibrator
Black and White Brown and Brown Stock Stock
$116,405.00 ' $121,355.00 $114,389.00 $130,169.00
RECOMMENDATION

We believe the best value for the City is a new 2014 Peterbilt 340 with 14 cu yd
dump body. The advantage of the Peterbilt from Rush Truck is locally available parts
and service. We are currently using two Peterbilts in our fleet and they have proven
reliable. Rush has parts and service available in Calallen, Alice, Pharr and across the
State of Texas.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The purchase will expend from 001-5-107.3-7111.00. The white cab with black dump
body is $116,405.00 and to have it painted brown on brown to match other City of
Kingsville dump trucks will add $4,950.00 to the cost for a total expenditure of
$121,355.00. As Rush Truck is an approved BuyBoard vendor, this falls under
allowable cooperative purchasing under Interlocal Government Act and Local
Government Code Chapter 271.



AGENDA ITEM #6



Purchasing/Technology
Department

DATE: October 29, 2014

TO: City Commission through City Manager
FROM: David Mason, Purchasing/IT Director
SUBJECT: Vehicles for Various Departments

SUMMARY
This item authorizes the purchase of vehicles for various City Departments.

BACKGROUND
RECOMMENDATION/ FINANCIAL IMPACT

We recommend purchasing the following vehicles from Silsbee Ford, 1211 Hwy 96 N,
Silsbee, TX 77656, who is an approved BuyBoard vendor:

Police Dept
Ford Fusions for CID, 4 ea. @ $16,403.00 ea, = $65,614.00....... 039-5-210.4-711.00
Task Force
Ford Explorer, Police Interceptor, lea. @ $24,880.90............. 008-5-233.711.00

Community Appearance
Ford F250 Caribou Brown ECSB 1 ea. @ $22,070.90 .............. 001-5-160.3-711.00

Health Department
Ford F250 Blue Jean Blue SCLB lea. @ $19,575.00 ....... 001-5-440.0-711.00

Fire Dept
Ford F150 Red CCSB lea. @ $25,738.64 ........ 091-5-220.0-711.00

Ford F350 Red DRW CCSvcBody 1 ea. @ $47,040.00..... 091-5-220.0-711.00

Water Production
Ford F150 Blue Jean Blue RCLB 1 ea. @ $19,704.40..... 051-5-600.2-711.00

As Silsbee Ford is an approved BuyBoard vendor, this falls under allowable
cooperative purchasing under the Interlocal Government Act and Local Government
Code Chapter 271.

These capital expenditures were budgeted for each department in the FY14-15 Budget.



AGENDA ITEM #7



Purchasing/Technology
Department

DATE: October 29, 2014

TO: City Commission through City Manager
FROM: David Mason, Purchasing/IT Director
SUBJECT: Change in contract terms

On July 14, 2014 City Commission approved Bid 14-14 Curb, Gutter, and Driveway Repair
to Etech Construction as a part of the asphaltic streets rebuild program. The FY 14 price was
$7.50 per linear foot of curb & gutter and $32.00 of square foot of driveway. A 5% escalation
clause for FY 2015 was included to bring the FY 15 price to $7.88 and $33.60. Due to dramatic
increases in the cost of concrete and rebar, as well as some in labor, the Contractor is no longer
able to perform the work at the quoted prices. He is asking for a twenty-five (25) percent
increase to cover these additional and unforeseen price increases. The primary reason for these
price increases is the increase in demand for concrete and steel due to the rapid increase in oil
exploration and production in the Eagle Ford and other shale plays. A 25% increase would result
in the following change in prices: from $7.88 to $9.85 and from $33.60 to $42.00.  The City
currently has approximately 4,000 linear feet of curb and gutter planned along with asphaltic
street repair. Coupled with the approximately fifty (50) driveways this price increase has the
potential to raise our costs from $128,000 to $172,000 for curb and gutter and from $60,000 to
$78,750 on driveways. This $58,500 could change our costs from $192,000 to $250,500 which is
within the budgeted amount for FY15. Budgeted are available as certain streets and/or certain
areas of curb and gutter were deemed unnecessary for repair. With these costs savings FY 15
activities should be able to be completed within budgetary amounts.

It is recommended the City Commission approve these changes as opposed to a rebid as with the
market volatility still in place the new bid prices could be significantly higher than the proposed
price increase,



AGENDA ITEM #8



Purchasing/Technology
Department

DATE: October 29, 2014

TO: City Commission through City Manager
FROM: David Mason, Purchasing/IT Director
SUBJECT: Out of State Travel Anaheim CA

SUMMARY
This item is to authorize the out of state travel for two employees to attend the
Laserfiche Empower Conference in Anaheim CA.

BACKGROUND
Laserfiche is hosting its annual Empower Conference on January 13-16, 2015, in
Anaheim, CA. City Staff would like to request permission to attend this conference,
which offers four days of technical training, comprehensive classes.

Empower 2015 will also provide an abundance of networking opportunities, allowing
employees to brainstorm with peers from around the world and pick up best-practice
ideas to use here at the City.

The courses are broken down into technical, business, and end-user tracks.
Therefore, it is advantageous to have multiple people attend. Additionally, there will
be hands on labs to provide on-site training as well as software and business
developers.

RECOMMENDATION
City Staff recommends that we send two people to the Empower conference each
attending different course tracks to gain the most out of the event. Additionally, we
have one of the registrations pre-paid via the service contract with MCCI and any
additional registrations are offered at a significant discount.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The purchase will expend from 001-1902-31600 and from 001-5-1010-31600.
Registration cost will be paid for on up to two employee ($695.00) value. Lunch and
breakfast will be provided each day of the conference. The travel cost include airfare
of $294.00, hotel $580.00, and meals $141.00 per persons. This is a total of
$1015.00 per person.



..C...G'.I..0.....Il-......I‘..CII.OIUI‘...I..I‘.l.l._

An Investment in Your Organization’s Success

Run Smarter® .- .. LaserfiCheJ




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

The Laserfiche Empower Conference provides a proven way to improve your technical
skillset, spark new ideas and accelerate Laserfiche projects. In fact, 98.6% of the
people who attended last year thought that their investment paid off.

]
48 The amount of information, knowledge, experience
and support that you get from attending the Empower
Conference is absolutely priceless. % i

Retcords Manager
&

#4 The conference was well worth
the cost. | have a much better
idea of where we should go and
how to get there. g

4} This was the best money | Finance Manager
have spent in four years at
my organizatien. % #

Coordinator of
Network Support

Run Smarter® : e Laserfiche _




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

Empower Success Stories: This Could Be You!

Run Smarter®




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

Who Attends Empower?

Run Smarter®

N La'EficheE’



Laserfiche Empower 201_5_Confe|"ence

Popular Reasons to Attend

24
434 As a busy professional, |

P

24 One of the best conferences R often intend to make it to
| have attended. Very the Laserfiche S’HPPDH
substantive. No fluff. 5 g Site 1o see what's .new but
4 seldom have the time.
With Empower, | feel good

Directer of Corporate
Support Services

3

51 | left the conference
overwhelmed (in a good

about having dedicated time

whera my sole objective
wayl, excited and eager to

get back to the office and
share with my coworkers

is to learn more about
Laserfiche. Empower is well

worth the investment. g5
same of the new things | A

learned at Empower. It was
an AWESOME experience
for me! g4

Director of IT

Business User

Run Smarter®




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

‘Valuable Face Time with Laserfiche Engineers

Run Smarter®

#-

)

4 The Info Center is a great resource for
deeper learning and getting specific
questions answered. Talk to the experts at
the Info Center for their input and advice.

Kathy Jenisch,

Records Manager,
Kentucky Sanitation District #1

hallenges you fac

__ Laserfiche




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

Advice from Analyst Firms:
Takeaways from Gartner’s Session at Empower 2014

Run Smarter®




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

Laserfiche Experts Can Learn from Empower Too:
An IT Administrator’'s Perspective

Learn more about
Methodist Healthcare
Ministries’ story on the
Solution Exchange

Run Smarter®




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

Thinking about Workflow?
Why It Pays to Attend Empower

Run Smarter® : LaserfiChe‘ _




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

The Value of Empower for Records Managers

- Learn more about
5D1's stery on the
Solution Exchange

Run Smarter® B LaserfIChe




Laserfiche Empower 2015 Conference

Why It Keeps Paying to Come Back to Empower:

A Returning Attendee’s Perspective

Learn more about
Associated Grocers’ story
on the Solution Exchange

Run Smarter®




_Lasérfiche Empower 2015 Conference

The Business Value of Empower:
An Interview with Colette Vienneau

Run Smarter®




AGENDA ITEM #9



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 UTILITY FUND BUDGET TO
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE NEW CITY HALL AT THE HISTORIC
H.M.KING HIGH SCHOOL.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2014-
2015 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE

DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT
Dept. Department Account Account Budget Budget
No. Name: Name: Number: Increase Decrease
Fund 051 Utility Fund T S
Capital /
2 Unreserved Fund Balance 61002 $467.519
$467,519

Expenses
5-0000 Non-departmental Transfers Outto Fund 091 39413 $467.519

$467.519
Fund 091 GF Capital Projects
Revenues
4-0000 Non-departmental Transfer In From Fund 051 75010 $467,519

$467.519
Expenses
5-1030 City Special Building 71300 $467 519

$467,519

To amend the FY 14-15 Utility Fund Budget to provide additional funding for the New
City Hall at the Historic H.M. King High School as per the attached memo from the Directors
of Planning and Development Services and of Finance.



THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to
the extent of such conflict only.

1.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase; word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption
and publication as required by law.
INTRODUCED on this the 10" day of _November , 2014.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the __ day of , 2014,

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



'To: Vince Capell, City Manager

From: Tom Ginter, Director of Planning and Development Services
Deborah Balli, Finance Director

Subject: Funds for the H.M. King School Project

Date: October 28, 2014

On Monday, October 13, 2014, the Old H.M. King High School team met to discuss the bid that
was received by the Foundation with the Foundation’s project supervisor, AG/CM.
The bid received for the projectis:  $4,740,000

Construction Budget: $3.858.481
This leaves a difference of: $ 881,519

The team then proceeded to review the bid/budget comparison shect that AC/CM put together. It
was the team’s objective to determine if any objections could be made to close the funding gap
of $881,519. The following reductions have been suggested:

1. Site Parking and Sidewalks: The bid cost is $336,000. It was determined that we could
reduce this by $155,000 by using city employees for some of the work.

2. Doors: There are approximately 77 doors in the building that were custom spec’d. While
the doors in full view of the public should be custom, there are 49 interior doors in
nonpublic spaces that can be changed to stock rather that custom units which means that
we can reduce the bid cost of $245,000 by $50,000.

3. Landscaping: The landscaping bid is $100,000. The team felt that this could be deferred
until later so it is recommended to eliminate the entire $100,000.

4. Unforeseen Consideration: This bid item is for $150,000. While there are funds needed in
this line item, it was determined that the funding can be reduced by $50,000 to $100,000.

5. Voluntary Reductions/Value Engineering: This number represents changes made by the
contractor and discussed with the AC/CM as to reduce the cost. One example is that a
different brand of paint will be used that is less in cost but meets our approval.

Summary: Difference to make up $881,519
Reductions:

Site Parking/Sidewalks $155,000

Doors 50,000

Landscaping 100,000

Unforeseen Conditions 50,000

Value Engineering 59,000

$414.000

Balance to be to be funded $467.519



This is a total of $414,000 in reductions, which leaves us a balance of $467,519 to come up with
to close the gap of $881,519. The Commission should take into account that while we are
confident in our numbers it is possible a budget amendment may be needed in the future.

Recommendation:

That the Utility Fund be utilized to close the gap of $467,519. It will be necessary to do a budget
amendment so the utility funds can be used for this project.

Why the Utility Fund?

The Historic H.M. King High School is proposed to house all City administrative personnel, who
provide services to all City funds. The Utility Fund accounts for more than 30% of the total
budget for all City funds meaning that 30% or more of the space in City Hall is consumed in
support of Utility Fund activities. Accordingly, since the City’s new City Hall at the Historic
H.M. King High School will be used at least 30% (35% in FY15 or $18,316,443/$52,312,524 =
35%) to support Utility Fund operations and activities, it can be argued that the Utility Fund can
legitimately be asked to pay for up to 30% of the related old high school/City Hall renovation
costs.

To date, the City has not proposed to finance any of the Historic H.M, King High School
renovation costs using Utility Funds. In this instance staff is seeking City Commission approval
to fund 10% ($467,519 of the $4,740,000 = 10%) total renovation costs from the Utility Fund,
which is reasonable and prudent given that 30% of this building will be used to support Utility
Fund operations and activities.

If you have any questions, please feel free to ask.



AGENDA ITEM #10



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 POLICE DEPARTMENT-
STATE SEIZURE FUND BUDGET FOR THE PURCHASE OF AUTOMATIC LICENSE
PLATE READERS.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year out of Fund 005 — State Seizure Fund.

l.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2014-
2015 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE

DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT
Dept. Departmént Account Account Budget Budget
No. Name: Name: Number: Increase Decrease

Fund 028 PD-Federal Seizure Fund

Expenses

5-2100 Police Machinery/Equipment 71200 $42,980
$42,980

Fund 005 PD-State Seizure Fund

Capital

2 Unreserved Fund Balance 61002 $2,020
$2,020

Expenses

5-2100 Police Machinery/Equipment 71200 $45,000

$45,000

To amend the FY 14-15 Police Department State Seizure Fund Budget for the
purchase of an Automatic License Plate Reader as per the attached memo from the Chief of
Police. The original purchase was budgeted in the PD-Federal Seizure Fund and will now be
purchased from the PD-State Seizure Fund. The difference of $2,020 between budgeted
funds and the actual quote received will come from Fund 005 fund balance.

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to
the extent of such conflict only.

1.



THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption
and publication as required by law.
INTRODUCED on this the 10" day of _November , 2014.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the __day of , 2014.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



KINGSVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM
October 29, 2014

TO : Vincent J. Capell, City Manager
Deborah Balli, Finance Director

FROM : Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police

SUBJECT : Request for Budget Amendment Chapter 59

I am requesting a budget amendment to our Chapter 59 budget for FY2014-2015 in the amount
of $45,000.00. These funds will be used to purchase Elsag’s Automatic License Plate Reader
from John Wright Associates, Inc, 1111 West Abram Street in Arlington TTX 76013.

This tool is critical to assist our department in Homeland Security initiatives, recovery of stolen
vehicles and license plates, Amber Alerts, missions related to missing and exploited children,
and collection of municipal warrants via programmed hot lists.

This ALPR is the only one that reads plates from all 50 states including flat and red character

plates. The system can be configured to remotely alarm an email recipient and can operate with
data from different sources and be updated on the fly.

This equipment is available via Texas Multiple Award Schedule, TXMAS-8-840130.

Please place this budget amendment on the next available City of Kingsville City Commission
meeting. Thank you for your assistance regarding this matter.



WHeLEN Ot

ENGINEERING COMBANY ING.

Pro an rd

‘.J"

. % Jahi \A\irlgqlc_. MRnickates, e
1111 West Abram Street
Arlington, TX 76013

To: Gus Ruiz
Kinggsville Police Dept.

Date; CQctober 13, 2014
Quinte # QTi40130

Praductivity in motion
Munufackhrer’s Represeniafives..
Kingsville, TX
Quote Goariﬁ)r-i&'Ddys'

“Pyrchase Oriders Are fo Be Made Out-to Distribinfoy Below®™

“Greg Heaﬁandéz

Fiaight: TBiZ) UPS Grovmd Unless Specified Qtherwise)

1140002 : L I4500.00 {
Two-Cameta Mirit Split Mobile Systern (Perimanent Push Moutit Camera Is 5 - 7
52§mm PushBumper V- Bracket Mougit, Camera 2 35mm Push Butif,lper U- Biacket . “
Mmmt Permanent Power-Cable, Push BLunpeerO Camera Cable, 20 Ft., Floor : -
: Mount Trunk Box'Mount; Protocol: NEW TX DEA : : - :
360 41822 ' 500,00 - 1,80060 -
; "EESAGOperations Centér Licenise Bée; Back BndtServer Application Licefise o T
: “ToMitiage Data-&nd Flotlists : -
‘200 210019 ' A .
: ER'L{nw.tef'Sofh!vare Installation That Does Mot Requive.A.Site Visit }md Can Be 7 o :
:Accomplished Prom G50 : -
“NOTES: i -
gVictdfia' Cty 80 Respansible For Cellular Servie : : -
:24/7 TRCH Support ' : .
\FIRST Yoar Warranty Free : : -
Subfotal & 15,000.00
Sales Tm
'Fmaf ¥ 5;000.00

Thank you for your business!

PUIT W, Abvae B0 Ardreeion TR Talld 817 A1 6ol H3Lm, vy ghernage Lo ol €0




@ Window on State Governmment  SusanConibs Texss Comprratler of Public Accomms

Search TXMAS Contracts [ Search |

Rebates: Pursuant to-Texas Government Gode §2153.510(b), rebates generated:from TXMAS contiact purchases made using federal funds must be
reported to the federal funding agency for reporting and réconciliatiotr purchases, Each-quarter of the State’s fiscal year, TXMAS cohtractois yebate
75%-of tlieir TXMAS sales to the Stare of Texas via the Texas Comptroflér of Piiblic Accounts (CPA), It is fhe purcliasing entity's responsibility to
report the ameuntof rebate rising the-above percent baséd on the folal dbllar value of the TXMAS purcliase order, )

Example: A purchasing entity receives-and uses federal-funds of $50,000. to puscliase itemi/servicés on'a TXMAS contract. The purchasing entity must
report to the foderal fnd-provider thata salés rébate of $373 (550,000 *.75% =$375) will be-paid tothe State of Texas by the TXMAS contractor:

ELSAG NORTH AMERICA LLC
Contract TXMAS:8-840130

LAW ENFORCEMENT INCLUDING LICENSE PLATE READERS.

Comporate Office: - Delivery:
BLSAG NORTH AMERICA LLC.
T Lo P, FOR Baint:
BREWSTER NY 10509 o
HUSA Terms:
SendPOtx Renit To: ELSAG NORTH AMERICA LLC -
ELSAG NORTH AMERICALLC 205-H CREEK RIDGE ROAD
205-H CREEK RIDGEROAD GREENSBORO NC 27406
GREENSBORO NC 27406 USA
UsA Vendor 1D:
Vendor ID: 18001195686 )
o YendorID: 18007195686
InvoiceFfom: e
BELSAG NORTH AMERTCA LLC BusingssType! Large:
205-H CREEK.RIDGE ROAD. ——— T
GREENSBORO NG 27406 _DUNS ke 196140821
Ush Effective: 5/21/2008
Vendar TD; Exjiires: 5/31/2015

CONTACT: NATHAN MALONEY
Phofie866-967-4900
NATEMALONEY@ELSAG.COM

Effective Date: This Texas Multiple Award Schedule (TXMAS) contract is effective beginiing 5/21/2008 through 5/31/2015 and is automatically
rencwed on the date-that the General Services Administration (GSAY éXercises the renewal option. All State of Texas termsand conditichs will

continue and apply to-all feniewal periods by vitual agreement, The.contrac ;
same as:ihe prices contained in the most eurent madification fo GSA Con

i hay cetlified thal tlie piices reflected in the coritractor's catalog are the
ctNo. PC6Z119,

Placement of Orders: _Purchasing_ 'entitie_& mustuse TxSmartByy,coni when purchasing on TXMAS. The TXMAS confractot or dealer is 1ot required
to aceept orders below: the minimum listed below, For orders aboye the maximum, purchasing entities are entitled (o negofiate for lower prices than

theselisted on TxSmartBuy-com.

Order Limitation:
Minimun Order: N/A
Maximum Order: N/A.

Approved Products/Services: Only products.or services listed in the CPA approved GSA contract may be purchesed from this 'THXMAS contiact,
with ane exception: Incidental, off-schedule items may be purchased as “Best value, open mutkel" items provided thatthey ave necessary forprodiict
integration-or product completeness. The:purchasing:entity is responsible for ensuring that-the quoted price for such incidental iters is fafrand
reasonable; These incidental jtems may be-added to the TXMAS purchase order if they are clearly labeled as "open market (OM), best value® items.

State Contracis: All Texas Conncil for Purchasing from Peopie with Disabilities contracts and Texas Correctional [ndustries (TEI) term-contracts
takeprecedence over this TXNIAS contract. If similar prodicts-or-services are listed on this TXMAS contract and 3 €PA tarm gontract, a
determination should be made that will vesult in'a best value purchase;

Payment Due Date: Payment will be duc on te thirtieth (30) calendar day after the later-of: (a) the date the State actually receives a preper invoice at
the office designated in the-applicable puichase order to receive it; or (b) the date the State accepts the produgts er services. The. post mark date on the
envelope for the State warrant (State's equivalent to-a check) or banking information showing whien a direct deposit transaction was received will be




considered the date payment is made, Interest starts aceruing on the first day that payment is late. The rate of interest for late payments is set at ane
percent per month.

Special Note: The State of Texas, including butnot limited to its Apencies, cooperative purchasing members-and any [ocal governmental entity
authorized by law to use the Texas Multiple Award Schedule rnethod for purchasing is-not obligated to procure any produets or services from this
TXMAS contract. This schedule coniract shall rot-be eonstrued to prevent the State from purchasing products or services using other procurement
methiods as authorized by law.

Keywords: ELSAG; ELSAG NA, MPH-900, Mobile Plate Hunter 900, LPR, ALPR, license plate reader, license plate recognition, license plate
technology, automatic number plate reader, automatic license plate regoguition, mobile license plate recognition, mobile LER, license plate caplure,
fised camera, mobile.camera, portable camera, license plate ¢camera, LPR camera, LPR technology, traffic surveillance camera, Wifi card, LPR voice
ménager, touch sereen car PC, field control unit for fixed cameras, Rentington ELSAG, license plate réader, barrel cam [icerise plate reader

Contact Us

1f you have any suggestions on how to improva TXMAS or this web site, please send an email to bomas@cyia state. s or ¢all 512-463-3421.

Texas.qov | Statewide Search from the Texas State Liprary| Skate Link Polley} Texa® Homeland Security

Susan Cambs, Texay Comptroller » Windgiv on State Govemment = Contact Us
Privacy and Seciitity Policy | Accessibillty Policy | Link Palicy | Public Information Act] Caripact with Fexafs




10/21/2014 Wahmail 6.0 - lnbox

Atfachmenis: *

e From: "Craig Duncan" <crai¢ elex-es. X
= Subjeet; 013 ' ' ¥
Sent clate;

To:

Ce:

Gus,

Please see the attached quote from our Texas distributor John Wright & Associates. Installation as well as
the one time HIDTA-ALPR server cohnection fee is included and there will be NO ongoing HIDTA database
fees unlike Vigilant's ongoing licensing or user access fees. For interdiction there-trulyis no other choice
than the HIDTA ALPR network as it is the only one recelving the DEA Cat 384 hetiists and HIDTA BOLO
lists. Richard Kirkpatrick in the Taskforce and Capt. Longoria at Kleberg COSO can attest to the HIDTA
ALPR server and ELSAG's performarice.

Please let me kriow if we can heip furthet.
Stay safe,
THIS. COMMUNICATION MAY CONTAIN CONFIDENTIAL AND/OR QTHERWISE PROPRIETARY

MATERIAL and is thus for use only by the intended recipient. If you recéived this in error, please contact
the sender and délete the e-mail and its attachments from all computers.

hitps:fwebsiesmail att comiimail/f

1M




AGENDA ITEM #11



C1TY OF KINGSVILLE
LEGAL DEPARTMENT

P.O. Box 1458, Kingsville Texas 78364 Phone: 361-595-8016 Fax: 361-592-4696

Date: November 5, 2014
To:  Mayor and City Commissioners
From: Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

Re: Farmers Market Proposal

A group of citizens has formed a Kingsville Farmer's Market group. They have a
Board that has developed proposed regulations and applications for vendors who
may want to participate in the market. The Board would like to use the City's
pavilion area off of Yoakum and 6" Street for the Farmer’s Market that would
take place on the 4™ Saturday of each month, starting in February 2015. The
Board is willing to include in its regulations and applications waiver and hold
harmiess language to protect the City.

The Board is requesting the City’s participation with the Farmer's Market in three
areas:

1) to allow the market to be held once a month at the pavilion area,

2} to be covered under the City’s events insurance policy, and

3) to waive the health permit fees, as has been done for other events’ vendors.



